
Please ask for Christine Morgan: Telephone 01775 764454 
e-mail: cmorgan@sholland.gov.uk

AGENDA

Committee - GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE

Date & Time - Thursday, 15 March 2018 at 6.30 pm

Venue - Meeting Room 1, Council Offices, Priory Road, 
Spalding

Membership of the Governance and Audit Committee:

Councillors: G R Aley (Chairman), D Ashby, J R Astill (Vice-Chairman), C J T H Brewis, 
T A Carter, P C Foyster and M D Seymour

Revised quorum 3.

Persons attending the meeting are 
requested to turn off mobile telephones 

Democratic Services
Council Offices, Priory Road
Spalding, Lincs PE11 2XE

Date:  7 March 2018

Public Document Pack

Page 1



AGENDA

PLEASE NOTE TIMINGS
ARE APPROXIMATE

TIME
6.30 pm 1. Apologies for absence. 

6.31 pm 2. Declaration of Interests - (Where a Councillor has a 
Disclosable Pecuniary Interest the Councillor must 
declare the interest to the meeting and leave the room 
without participating in any discussion or making a 
statement on the item, except where a Councillor is 
permitted to remain as a result of a grant of 
dispensation). 

3. Minutes - To sign as a correct record the minutes of the 
following meetings:

6.32 pm a)   Governance and Audit Committee  - 14 December 2017 
(copy enclosed)

(Pages 5 - 
14)

6.34 pm b)   Governance and Audit Committee  - 16 January 2018 
(copy enclosed)

(Pages 15 
- 18)

6.35 pm 4. Quarterly Risk Report Q3 2017/18 -  To inform the 
Committee on the current status of the Council’s 
strategic risks (report of the Executive Director Strategy 
and Governance enclosed)

(Pages 19 
- 30)

6.45 pm 5. Implementation of agreed Internal Audit 
Recommendations as at 31 October 2017 – At the 
meeting of the Governance and Audit Committee on 14 
December 2017, members considered a follow up report 
which provided members with the position on the 
progress made by management in implementing agreed 
Internal Audit recommendations.  

The Interim Housing Landlord Services Manager and the 
Environmental Services Manager will provide an update 
to the issues listed within the attached documents – 
these issues were detailed in appendices 2 and 3 of the 
report submitted to the meeting on 14 December 2017.  
Only information still to be addressed is now included 
within the tables enclosed.  

(Pages 31 
- 34)

7.00 pm 6. External Audit Plan 2017/18 - South Holland District 
Council (report of KPMG enclosed).

(Pages 35 
- 58)

7.10 pm 7. Certification of grants and returns 2016/17 - Annual 
Report (report of KPMG enclosed)

(Pages 59 
- 66)

Page 2



7.20 pm 8. Progress Report on Internal Audit Activity - To examine 
the progress made between 1 December 2017 and 28 
February 2018 in relation to the completion of the Annual 
Internal Audit Plan for 2017/18 (report of the Head of 
Internal Audit enclosed).

(Pages 67 
- 94)

7.30 pm 9. Strategic and Annual Internal Audit Plans 2018/19 - To 
provide an overview of the stages followed prior to the 
formulation of the Strategic Internal Audit Plan for 
2018/19 to 2020/21 and the Annual Internal Audit Plan 
for 2018/19 (report of the Head of Internal Audit 
enclosed).

(Pages 95 
- 114)

7.45 pm 10. Audit Mandatory Inquiries - To confirm the response to 
the External Audit Mandatory Inquiries (report of the 
Executive Director Commercialisation (S151) enclosed)

(Pages 
115 - 118)

7.55 pm 11. Governance and Audit Committee Work Programme – 
To set out the Work Programme of the Governance and 
Audit Committee (report of the Executive Manager 
Governance (Deputy Monitoring Officer) enclosed).

(Pages 
119 - 124)

8.00 pm 12. Any other items which the Chairman decides are urgent. 

NOTE: No other business is permitted unless by 
reason of special circumstances, which 
shall be specified in the minutes, the 
Chairman is of the opinion that the item(s) 
should be considered as a matter of 
urgency.

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



- 18 -

Minutes of a meeting of the GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE held in  
Meeting Room 1, Council Offices, Priory Road, Spalding, on Thursday, 14 December 
2017 at 6.30 pm.

PRESENT

G R Aley (Chairman)
J R Astill (Vice-Chairman)

D Ashby
C J T H Brewis

T A Carter
P C Foyster

M D Seymour

In Attendance:  J Cornett (Director, KPMG), H Brookes (Manager, KPMG), E Hodds 
(Internal Audit Consortium Manager, Eastern Internal Audit Services), the Executive 
Director Commercialisation, the Finance Manager Treasury, the Business Intelligence 
Officers (C Paine and C Gooch) and the Democratic Services Officer.

Action By
21. DECLARATION OF INTERESTS 

There were none. 

22. MINUTES 

The minutes of the Governance and Audit Committee meeting 
held on 12 September 2017 were signed by the Chairman as a 
correct record. 

23. QUARTERLY RISK REPORT Q2 2017/18 

Consideration was given to the report of the Executive Director – 
Strategy and Governance which informed the Committee on the 
current status of the Council’s strategic risks.

The Committee noted that there were currently no risks that were 
rated in the high risk category. 

There were currently twelve risks which fell into the medium 
category. Of these risks, most remained at the same score as last 
quarter. As at Quarter 2, the risk relating to County Council 
budget risk had increased, moving from a low category risk to a 
medium category risk,  This was due to the fact that the county 
council budget would not be announced until February 2018, 
therefore until that point, SHDC could not be fully clear on the 
budget implications and as such was taking a more prudent view 
on this risk until clarity was provided.

The report noted that the risk regarding the failure to deliver core 
services with CPBS had reduced following on from a brief period 
in the high risk category due to a high number of vacancies within 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3.a)



- 19 -

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT - 14 December 
2017

the service.  This risk had since reduced and had fallen into the 
medium risk category following on from some successful 
recruitment within CPBS.  CPBS had successfully recruited a 
Head of Service for Finance in a permanent position, and had 
also filled all the vacant roles within the IT service with the 
exception of one which was still in the interview stages.

There were 2 risks currently reported in the low category which 
were relating to the failure to effectively implement corporate 
business continuity plans and the failure to deliver corporate 
priorities, and these were scored as they were in the previous 
quarter.

Members considered the report and the following issues were 
raised:

 With regard to staff recruitment and retention, what effect the 
high turnover of staff was having  on day to day operations.  
Members were advised that some staff turnover was expected 
as part of the service review.  Performance was monitored by 
the monthly Performance Board.  

 Were there any issues recruiting at SHDC? - Members were 
advised that there were no problems recruiting - all local 
authorities were going through similar transformation 
programmes so this was not a situation unique to SHDC.

AGREED:

That the contents of the report noted. 

24. SHDC ANNUAL AUDIT LETTER 2016/17 

Consideration was given to the report from KPMG which provided 
details of the Annual Audit Letter 2016/17.

The report summarised the key findings from the 2016/17 audit of 
South Holland District Council.  Although the letter was addressed 
to the members of the Authority, it was also intended to 
communicate these issues to key external stakeholders, including 
members of the public, and would be placed on the Authority’s 
website.

All issues raised within the report had been brought before the 
Committee in previous meetings.  

The report provided more detail around VFM risk areas, 
identifying the significant matter of financial resilience.  The 

Page 6



- 20 -

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT - 14 December 
2017

2016/17 outturn had been reviewed, as had the processes for 
developing the 2017/18 budget and the reasonableness of the 
assumptions underlying the Medium Term Financial plan, and a 
number of key points were noted within the report.  However, the 
conclusion confirmed that there were appropriate arrangements in 
place to deliver.

The letter confirmed that KPMG had issued an unqualified 
conclusion on the Authority’s arrangements to secure value for 
money (VFM conclusion) for 2016/17 on 29 September 2017

Appendix 2 to the report highlighted information on KPMG’s final 
fees for the 2016/17 audit, plus charges for other services.
 
AGREED:

That the report be noted. 

25. EXTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT AND TECHNICAL 
UPDATE 

Consideration was given to the report from KPMG which provided 
details of the external audit progress report and technical update, 
as at December 2017.

The report provided the Governance and Audit Committee with an 
overview on progress delivering KPMG’s responsibilities as the 
external auditors.  The report also highlighted the main technical 
issues which were currently having an impact in local 
government.

Members were advised that the planning process for 2017/18 had 
been started, and a summary would be brought to the next 
meeting of the Committee.

The main issues that were discussed were:

General Data Protection Regulations

Members asked how much implementation of new data protection 
regulations would cost the Authority, and had this been budgeted 
for?
The Executive Director Strategy and Governance was giving 
consideration to how this would be resourced.  A gap analysis 
was being undertaken to compare the current situation, and what 
was required going forward.  Also, all staff would need to know of 
the new requirements.  

Page 7



- 21 -

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT - 14 December 
2017

Faster accounts close for Local Government

Accounts could be brought forward by the end of May 2018, and 
the audit by the end of July 2018.  The process would become 
more compressed.

AGREED:

That the report be noted. 

26. PROGRESS REPORT ON INTERNAL AUDIT ACTIVITY 

Consideration was given to the report of the Head of Internal 
Audit, which examined progress made between 1 September 
2017 and 30 November 2017 in relation to the completion of the 
Annual Internal Audit Plan for 2017/18. 

The Governance and Audit Committee received updates on 
progress made against the annual internal audit plan.  The report 
formed part of the overall reporting requirements to assist the 
Council in discharging its responsibilities in relation to the internal 
audit activity.

The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards required the Chief 
Audit Executive to report to the Governance and Audit Committee 
the performance of internal audit relative to its agreed plan, 
including any significant risk exposures and control issues.  The 
frequency of reporting was to each meeting.  To comply with 
requirements, the report identified:

 Any significant changes to the approved Audit Plan;
 Progress made in delivering the agreed audits for the year;
 Any significant outcomes arising from those audits; and
 Performance Indicator outcomes to date

The Committee was advised that the current position and issues 
in relation to the completion of the Annual Internal Audit Plan 
2017/18 were shown within the report.

During the period covered by the report, Internal Audit Services 
had issued five final reports – Planning and Planning 
Enforcement; Welland Homes; Electoral Registration; IT Project 
Delivery (Reasonable Assurance); and Corporate Performance 
and Corporate Plan (Substantial Assurance).  

The Committee was also advised that:

 The audit of Democratic Services had been moved to 2018/19 

Page 8



- 22 -

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT - 14 December 
2017

due to staffing changes.
 An extra five days had been added to the Housing Benefits 

audit due to the complexity of cases being tested.

AGREED:

That the report be noted. 

27. FOLLOW UP REPORT ON INTERNAL AUDIT 
RECOMMENDATIONS 

Consideration was given to the report of the Head of Internal 
Audit which provided members with the position on progress 
made by management in implementing agreed Internal Audit 
recommendations as at 31 October 2017.  The report formed part 
of the overall reporting requirements to assist the Council in 
discharging the responsibilities in relation to its Internal Audit 
Service.

The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards required the Chief 
Audit Executive to establish a process to monitor and follow up 
management actions to ensure that they had been effectively 
implemented or that senior management had accepted the risk of 
not taking action.  The frequency of reporting was twice yearly.

The report laid out the process followed, which included the 
uploading of recommendations to the Council’s performance 
management system (Covalent), and how non responses or 
recommendations which had been overdue for a long time were 
dealt with, initially through the Performance, Risk and Audit Board 
and the Finance Board, and then ultimately through the Executive 
Management Team.

A summary position as at 31 October 2017 was provided which 
showed 54% of recommendations completed, and 46% 
outstanding (which were at various stages within the process, at 
Priority 1, 2 and 3).

In relation to historic recommendations, i.e. those which were 
raised by Audit Lincolnshire, progress had been made, with three 
being closed since the last report, and eight now outstanding (two 
urgent and six important). 

In 2016/17, internal audit had raised 48 recommendations, 40 of 
which had been implemented by management and eight of which 
were outstanding (six important and two needing attention).  The 
management responses in relation to the six important 
outstanding recommendations were provided at Appendix 3 of the 

Page 9



- 23 -

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT - 14 December 
2017

report.

Concern was raised by members on delays to implementation of 
recommendations.  It was felt that the Committee needed to 
monitor those recommendations where there were revised dates 
and delays.  The Head of Internal Audit advised that the delays 
related to the items listed at appendices 2 and 3 of the report.  
She advised that an internal board meeting in January would be 
held to look at the recommendations to ensure that the latest 
notes were meaningful, and to see what was achievable.  Those 
recommendations that had not been actioned would be 
highlighted, and appropriate officers invited to the next meeting of 
the Committee to explain reasons for delays

AGREED:

a) That the report be noted; and

b) That the Head of Internal Audit identify internal audit 
recommendations not yet actioned and that where there were 
concerns, relevant officers be identified to attend the next 
meeting of the Governance and Audit Committee to explain 
delays. 

CM 

28. COUNTER FRAUD, CORRUPTION AND BRIBERY POLICY 
AND WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY 

Consideration was given to the report of the Head of Internal 
Audit which asked the Committee to consider the Counter Fraud, 
Corruption and Bribery Policy and the Whistleblowing Policy, 
which had been updated in line with best practice and relevant 
legislation, and to ensure that the policies reflected the practice at 
Breckland Council.

The Committee had recently carried out a self-assessment 
against CIPFA best practice, and as part of this assessed the 
principles which displayed best practice and how the Committee 
met these  One of these principles – ‘Helping the authority to 
implement the values of good governance, including effective 
arrangements for countering fraud and corruption risks’ – had an 
action point which was to ensure that the fraud related policies 
were updated and brought to the Committee for review and 
approval.  Review of these policies formed part of the 
Committee’s terms of reference.

In relation to the Money Laundering Policy, this was currently 
being drafted to reflect the new regulations that came into effect in 
June 2017, and would be brought to the Committee at a later 

Page 10



- 24 -

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT - 14 December 
2017

date.

The Counter Fraud, Corruption and Bribery Policy had been 
updated to ensure that best practice was followed and the 
opportunity had also been taken to update the responsible 
officers.  The Policy was now in line with the Policy at Breckland 
Council, which meant that all staff across both Councils worked to 
the same Policy.

The Whistleblowing Policy had been updated to reflect the correct 
responsible officers and also ensure that this Policy was also in 
line with the Policy at Breckland Council.

Members considered the report and the attached appendices and 
asked whether an awareness of, and information on the levels of 
types of frauds should be provided  The Head of Internal Audit 
responded that this would be useful as a performance report, 
although proportionality was an issue.  Issues of substance 
should be reported, and a report would be provided as 
appropriate to future meetings.

AGREED:

a) That the Committee approve and agree the Counter Fraud, 
Corruption and Bribery Policy and the Whistleblowing Policy; 
and

b) That the Head of Internal Audit present a performance report 
detailing levels and types of fraud to the next available 
Committee meeting. 

CM 

29. MID TERM TREASURY REPORT 2017/18 

Consideration was given to the report of the Executive Director 
Commercialisation which provided an update on the treasury 
management position of the Council as at 30 September 2017.

The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy’s 
(CIPFA) Code of Practice on Treasury Management 2011 was 
adopted by South Holland District Council on 8 March 2012, 
which meant that the following principles and actions should take 
place:

 Creation and maintenance of a Treasury Management Policy 
Statement which set out the policies and objectives of the 
Council’s treasury management activities;

 Creation and maintenance of Treasury Management Practices 
which set out the manner in which the Council would seek to 

Page 11



- 25 -

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT - 14 December 
2017

achieve those policies and objectives;
 Receipt by the full council of an annual Treasury Management 

Strategy Statement – including the Annual Investment 
Strategy and Minimum Revenue Provision Policy – for the 
year ahead, a Mid-Year Review Report and an Annual Report 
(stewardship report) covering activities during the previous 
year.

 Delegation by the Council of responsibilities for implementing 
and monitoring treasury management policies and practices 
and for the execution and administration of treasury 
management decisions; and

 Delegation by the Council of the role of scrutiny of treasury 
management strategy and policies to a specific named body.  
For South Holland District Council, the delegated body was 
the Governance and Audit Committee.

The mid year report had been prepared in compliance with 
CIPFA’s Code of Practice on Treasury Management, and covered 
the following:

 An economic update for the 2017/18 financial year to 30 
September 2017;

 A review of the Treasury Management Strategy Statement and 
Annual Investment Strategy;

 The Council’s capital expenditure (prudential indicators);
 A review of the Council’s investment portfolio for 2017/18;
 A review of the Council’s borrowing strategy for 2017/18;
 A review of any debt rescheduling undertaken during 2017/18;
 A review of compliance with Treasury and Prudential Limits for 

2017/18

The following issues were raised:

 In the future, a paragraph should be added relating to the 
minimum revenue provision policy although it was noted that 
this could change as a result of DCLG consultation on MRP 
for future years.

 In the future, ratings of each institution should be shown for 
information within the Investment Portfolio table in Appendix B.  

AGREED:

a) That the Committee note the report, the economic update from 
Link Asset Services at Appendix A and the treasury activity as 
detailed in Appendix B; and

b) That the Committee refer to Council the additional wording to 

SH 

Page 12



- 26 -

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT - 14 December 
2017

the Minimum Revenue Provision Policy contained in the 
Treasury Management Strategy 2017/18 as detailed in 
paragraph 1.1 of the report, for approval at its meeting on 17 
January 2018. 

30. GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE WORK 
PROGRAMME 

Consideration was given to the report of the Executive Manager 
Governance, which presented the Work Programme of the 
Governance and Audit Committee, as set out in Appendix A within 
the report.

The Committee was advised that meeting dates for the 2017/18 
municipal year were currently being agreed and would be added 
to the Work Programme in due course.

AGREED:

That the report and content of the Work Programme be noted.  

31. ANY OTHER ITEMS WHICH THE CHAIRMAN DECIDES ARE 
URGENT. 

There were none. 

 (The meeting ended at 8.32 pm)

(End of minutes)

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



- 27 -

Minutes of a meeting of the GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE held in  
Meeting Room 1, Council Offices, Priory Road, Spalding, on Tuesday, 16 January 
2018 at 6.30 pm.

PRESENT

G R Aley (Chairman)
J R Astill (Vice-Chairman)

D Ashby
C J T H Brewis

P C Foyster
M D Seymour

 

Apologies for absence were received from or on behalf of Councillors T A Carter and 
the Executive Director Commercialisation.   

In Attendance:  The Finance Manager Treasury and the Democratic Services Officer.

Action By
32. DECLARATION OF INTERESTS 

There were none. 

33. TREASURY MANAGEMENT POLICY AND STRATEGIES 
2018/19 

Consideration was given to the report of the Executive Director 
Commercialisation which provided information for pre-decision 
scrutiny of the Treasury Management Policy and Strategies 
2018/19 being proposed, prior to submission to Cabinet and 
Council for approval as part of the budget setting report.

Treasury Management was defined as: ‘The management of the 
local authority’s investments and cash flows, its banking, money 
market and capital market transaction; the effective control of the 
risks associated with those activities; and the pursuit of optimum 
performance consistent with those risks’.

The Council was required to receive and approve, as a minimum, 
three main reports each year, which incorporated a variety of 
policies, estimates and actuals.  The prudential and treasury 
indicators and treasury strategy (this report), was one of these 
reports.

The Treasury Management Strategy for 2018/19 covered two 
main areas:

 Capital issues
o The capital plans and the prudential indicators;
o The minimum revenue provision (MRP) policy.

Page 15

Agenda Item 3.b)



- 28 -

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT - 16 January 
2018

 Treasury management issues
o The current treasury position;
o Treasury indicators which would limit the treasury 

risk and activities of the Council;
o Prospects for interest rates;
o The borrowing strategy;
o Policy on borrowing in advance of need;
o Debt rescheduling;
o The investment strategy;
o Creditworthiness policy; and
o The policy on use of external service providers

The report also provided a summary of main changes and key 
issues.

Members considered the information within the report, which was 
explained in further detail by the Finance Manager Treasury.

The main issue that arose was the possibility of SHDC increasing 
the amount of its investment in Welland Homes to construct more 
houses, which could be less of a risk and provide a higher return.  
Officers advised that this could possibly be done if there was the 
will.  The overall capital expenditure requirements of the Council 
would need to be looked at as a whole.  It was agreed that this 
view be taken on to Cabinet and Council

A general discussion also took place regarding the list of 
Sovereign Countries whose banks could be used for investment 
purposes. Qatar and Abu Dhabi currently meet the investment 
criteria despite the political uncertainty in that region at the 
moment. Members of Governance and Audit were of the opinion 
that Members of Full Council should be involved in deciding 
whether Qatar and Abu Dhabi should remain on the list of 
Sovereign Countries whose banks would be available for Council 
investments.  It was pointed out that even if they are included on 
the list, the Section 151 would not be obliged to invest in that 
region until the political situation improved.

The Committee thanked the officers for a clear report and a clear 
delivery of the information within it.

AGREED:

a) That the Governance and Audit Committee recommend to 
Cabinet and Full Council that the following be approved as 
part of the budget setting report:

i. The Treasury Management Policy Statement 2018/19 

SH, CM 

Page 16



- 29 -

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT - 16 January 
2018

at Appendix A;

ii. The Treasury Management Strategy Statement 
2018/19 at Appendix B;

iii. The Minimum Revenue Provision Policy (MRP) 
statement within Appendix B, which set out the 
Council’s policy on MRP;

iv. The Prudential Indicators and limits contained with 
Appendix B (Tables 1-14)

v. The Annual Investment Strategy 2018-19 contained 
within Appendix C and the detailed criteria included in 
Appendix C1 and Appendix C2; and

b) That Cabinet and Full Council give consideration to the 
suggestion by the Governance and Audit Committee that the 
Authority consider investing in Welland Homes to build new 
homes, and to potentially provide a higher return for its 
investments. 

34. ANY OTHER ITEMS WHICH THE CHAIRMAN DECIDES ARE 
URGENT. 

There were none. 

(The meeting ended at 7.55 pm)

(End of minutes)

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report of: Maxine O’Mahony - Executive Director of Strategy and Governance

To: Governance and Audit Committee – 15th March 2018

Author: Greg Pearson - Corporate Improvement & Performance Manager

Subject: Quarterly Risk Report, Q3 2017/18

Purpose: To inform the Committee on the current status of the Councils’ strategic 
risks

Recommendation: 

1)  That the contents of the report are noted.

1.0 BACKGROUND

1.1. The last risk report to the Governance and Audit Committee was in December 2017 for Q2.  
Since then, there have been a small number of changes to the strategic risk register which 
are highlighted in this report.  

1.2 This report is generated using the Covalent system and includes updates on strategic risks 
for quarter 3, 2017/18.

1.3 Strategic risks are visible on the Corporate Dashboard which is available to the Executive 
Management Team (EMT) and risks are reviewed by EMT quarterly.  In addition, risks are 
reviewed monthly at the officer-led Performance, Risk & Audit Board chaired by the 
Executive Director of Strategy and Governance.

1.4. Strategic risks have been reviewed and updated with the responsible members of EMT.  
These cover the over-arching risks that may affect the strategic direction of the council, 
rather than risks linked to business continuity or those that affect discreet service areas. 
The strategic risk register includes 14 strategic risks (see Appendix A). 

1.5 Strategic risks typically affect the whole of the organisation and not just one or more parts 
of it. Strategic risks can potentially involve very high stakes and often affect the ability of the 
organisation to survive, e.g. impact on the ability of the Council to achieve its corporate plan 
objectives and purpose. 

1.6 The Council’s risk scoring mechanism is based on a 5x5 matrix, and is comparable with 
best practice in other, similar organisations.  The risk matrix provides a comprehensive 
assessment and understanding of risk likelihood and impact. The matrix results in a 
numerical score which combines the impact of the risk occurring with the likelihood of it 
happening.

1.7 Risks fall into High, Medium or Low categories depending on their rating 
High
Medium
Low

Page 19

Agenda Item 4.



1.8 Risks are tracked below in a heat map to represent the number of strategic risks currently 
reported at each score 

1.9 There are currently no risks that are rated in the high risk category. 

1.10 There are currently twelve risks which fall into the medium category. Of these risks, eleven 
remain at the same score as last quarter. As of Quarter 3 the risk relating to CPBS failure to 
deliver core services has reduced in likelihood further due to positive recruitment within IT 
and HR, however this risk will continue to be monitored as there are still vacancies within 
finance but assurance has been given that this is not significant enough to increase the risk 
as mitigations are in place and efforts to recruit are underway.

1.11 There are two risks currently reported in the low category are these are scored as they 
were in the previous quarter. 

2.0 OPTIONS

2.1 That the contents of the report are noted.

3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

3.1 Not applicable

4.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS

4.1 That the Committee is made aware of the Council’s strategic risks and understands that 
they are being managed and mitigated effectively.

5.0 IMPLICATIONS

5.1 Corporate Priorities

5.1.1 The report contains information on strategic risks relevant to the delivery of the 
Council’s corporate priorities.

Page 20



5.2 Financial

5.2.1 The report contains information on strategic risks relevant to the Council’s        
budgets and financial management.

5.3 Risk Management

5.3.1 The report provides detail on the Council’s strategic risks.

5.4 Staffing

5.4.1 The report contains information on strategic risks relevant to the delivery of the 
           Council’s corporate priorities 

6.0 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED

6.1 No wards or communities are affected

7.0 ACRONYMS 

7.1 EMT – Executive Management Team

Background papers:- None

Lead Contact Officer

Name and Post: Greg Pearson, Corporate Improvement and Performance 
Manager

Telephone Number: 07500-030900 
Email: greg.pearson@breckland-sholland.gov.uk

Key Decision: No

Exempt Decision: No

This report refers to a Discretionary Service 

Appendices attached to this report: 

Appendix A South Holland District Council Strategic Risk Register (Q3 
2017/18)

Page 21

file:///G:/Committee/Committee/Report%20Guide/2014/THE%20COMMITTEE%20REPORT%20GUIDE_JUNE%202014.doc


This page is intentionally left blank



SHDC Strategic Risk Report inc Targets

Title Description
Original 
Score Controls/ 

Mitigation
Current Risk 
Score Impact Likeli- 

hood

Trend 
(last 
qtr)

Latest Note
Latest 
Update 
Date

Target 
Impact

Target 
Likelihood

Medium 
Term 
Financial 
Plan Not 
Delivered

The Medium Term 
Financial Plan 
includes a balanced 
position which is 
dependent on 
delivery of the 
“Moving Forward” 
Transformation plan

12

There are a 
number of controls 
in place to track 
delivery including 
transformation 
board, 
Performance, Risk 
& Audit Board & 
Finance Board. 
PI's are tracking 
variance from plan

12 4 3

The score for this risk 
remains the same as 
the medium term 
financial plan 
continues to be 
monitored through 
various boards and our 
performance 
management 
framework

01 Feb 
2018

3 2

Uncertainty 
over future 
government 
funding 
settlement

Government funding 
reductions due to a 
weakening of the 
economy may be 
experienced during 
the period of the 
MTFP 

12

4yr MTFP sets out 
programme to be 
free of reliance on 
RSG by 2019. 
Setting investment 
funds, commercial 
property and 
growth to ensure 
continued income.
Star chamber 
exercises and 
constant forward 
looking reviews 
will be undertaken.

12 4 3

SHDC have 
successfully entered 
into the Business 
Rates Pilot for 2018/19 
which means that 
100% of business 
rates will be retained 
‘locally’ rather than the 
authority having to pay 
a large sum to Central 
Government (for 
redistribution to other 
authorities in other 
parts of the country via 
grants etc). due to 
securing this pilot the 
risk now focuses more 
on 2019/20 onwards.

07 Feb 
2018

2 2

P
age 23



Title Description
Original 
Score Controls/ 

Mitigation
Current Risk 
Score Impact Likeli- 

hood

Trend 
(last 
qtr)

Latest Note
Latest 
Update 
Date

Target 
Impact

Target 
Likelihood

Failure to 
maximise 
trading 
opportuniti
es

Failure to maximise 
trading opportunities 
could result in lack of 
commercial 
exploitation of assets 
or income from 
trading arms 

9

Governance is in 
place for MTFP 
through 
transformation 
board, finance 
board and 
Performance Risk 
and Audit Board 
which monitor the 
work towards 
maximising trading
opportunities

12 4 3

The council continues 
to review use of its 
major assets as well 
as trying to achieve 
maximum income from 
its trading arms, the 
Environmental health 
training and 
consultancy service is 
still being embedded 
and continues to focus 
on achieving income. 
Additionally mitigations 
for this risk are 
focused through the 
councils Moving 
forward and 
commercial boards.

07 Feb 
2018

2 2

Staff 
recruitment 
and 
retention at 
all levels 
within the 
organisatio
n

Staff recruitment and 
retention issues 
could undermine the 
effectiveness of the 
organisations though 
loss of experience 
and knowledge 

15

The mitigation for 
key senior posts 
that are vacant or 
serving their notice 
period will be to 
start recruitment 
and find suitable 
interim cover. 

12 3 4

For Quarter 3 staff 
turnover reduced as 
expected following the 
conclusion of the 
Place Review.  A 
review of the posts 
which were not able to 
be recruited to in 
Quarter 3 took place 
and these are now 
being advertised 
(Quarter 4).

15 Feb 
2018

2 2

P
age 24



Title Description
Original 
Score Controls/ 

Mitigation
Current Risk 
Score Impact Likeli- 

hood

Trend 
(last 
qtr)

Latest Note
Latest 
Update 
Date

Target 
Impact

Target 
Likelihood

General 
Data 
Protection 
Regulation 
Implementa
tion

With the 
implementation of 
the General Data 
Protection 
Regulation, which 
replaces the Data 
Protection Action of 
1998, there is a risk 
that the council will 
not manage its data 
appropriately and in 
line with the new 
regulations.

16

Monthly meetings 
of the statutory 
information group 
have highlighted 
areas which need 
to be addressed 
and training was 
delivered in 
September 2017 
for managers and 
proposed service 
Data Protection 
leads.

12 4 3

Authority has been 
granted to recruit a 
fixed term 18 month 
post as Information 
and Governance 
Officer to support the 
delivery of the 
measures required for 
GDPR. The Statutory 
& Information group 
continues to meet and 
deliver work 
supporting progress 
against the gap 
analysis. Member 
scrutiny committees 
are also engaged to 
ensure implementation 
continues.

29 Jan 
2018

2 2

Critical 
breach of 
ICT security

Attacks are 
happening with 
increasing frequency 
at present. Ransom 
and theft specialists 
are targeting 
banking details and 
personal information, 
as with all other 
government systems 
and private 
companies 

25

There is a 
comprehensive 
suite of protection 
measures in place 
including email 
filtering, web 
filtering, antivirus 
and windows 
updates which 
help to protect 
from viruses

10 5 2

The ICT team have 
completed a large 
number of business as 
usual activities to aid 
in the prevention of 
critical breaches such 
as patching of servers 
and applications, 
patching of Wi-Fi 
infrastructure in line 
with latest threats and 
recommendations, 
patching of the 
Firewalls and Proxy 
servers, user guidance 

12 Jan 
2018

4 2

P
age 25



Title Description
Original 
Score Controls/ 

Mitigation
Current Risk 
Score Impact Likeli- 

hood

Trend 
(last 
qtr)

Latest Note
Latest 
Update 
Date

Target 
Impact

Target 
Likelihood

and training on 
security best practice, 
compliance to PSN 
standards and 
certificate obtained 
and continued work 
with DPO to reduce 
exposure from GDPR 
requirements.

 

Impact of 
business 
rate 
appeals

Business rate 
retention policy 
changes leave the 
council exposed to 
risks on collection 
and baseline 
income. 

20

Financial provision 
has been made to 
cover the risk of 
current appeals, 
collection rates 
and growth

9 3 3

There has been a 
decrease in the 
provision for appeals 
in Q3 (2017/18) of 
£0.394m. This is partly 
due to a reduction of 
£1.3m for the one 
remaining power 
station appeal in Q3. 
The rateable value of 
this property dropped 
in March 2017 by 8%, 
but a further appeal 
against the RV 
remains outstanding, 
though it is not 
expected that a 
provision at the 
previous level of 14% 
is required. We await a 
decision from the 
Valuation Office on 
this appeal.

13 Feb 
2018

2 2

P
age 26



Title Description
Original 
Score Controls/ 

Mitigation
Current Risk 
Score Impact Likeli- 

hood

Trend 
(last 
qtr)

Latest Note
Latest 
Update 
Date

Target 
Impact

Target 
Likelihood

Impact of 
County 
Council 
Budget 
Reductions

Impact of County 
Council Budget 
Reductions. This will 
potentially impact on 
resident wellbeing. 

9

Ensure that Place 
directorate are 
involved early in 
conversations to 
represent the 
council and its 
residents

9 3 3

Risk remains the same 
since last quarter as 
we are aware that the 
county council budget 
will not be set until 
February 2018 and 
this will mean we have 
a lack of clarity until 
that time.

07 Feb 
2018

2 2

Failure to 
deliver 
financial & 
non-
financial 
outcomes 
of the 
approved 
Welland 
Homes 
business 
plan

Failure to deliver 
financial & non-
financial outcomes 
of the approved 
business plan has 
implication in areas 
which include Legal, 
reputational and 
Financial. Risk also 
refers to capacity 
and expertise in the 
organisation to 
deliver the housing 
development 
requirement for both 
the HRA and 
Welland Homes.

8

Mitigations as 
follows;
• Revised 
governance 
including 
strengthened 
terms of reference. 
• Improved 
communication on 
Council policies to 
the WH Board. 
• Increased 
operational 
capability and 
capacity within 
Council to support 
future programmes 
and WH Board of 
Directors. 
• Permanent 
Housing 
Development 
programme 
manager 

9 3 3

Layer 1 - Green Lane 
completed and fully let. 
Long Sutton approved 
by Cabinet and 
Council and underway.
Layer 2 - About to 
commence with 
Parkside contract 
being the first new 
build contract by 
Welland Homes on 
land acquired from 
SHDC.

Layer 3 - cannot be 
projected

07 Feb 
2018

2 2

P
age 27



Title Description
Original 
Score Controls/ 

Mitigation
Current Risk 
Score Impact Likeli- 

hood

Trend 
(last 
qtr)

Latest Note
Latest 
Update 
Date

Target 
Impact

Target 
Likelihood

• Positive Audit 
• Established 
methodology for 
assessing 
schemes 

CPBS 
Failure to 
deliver core 
services

CPBS Failure to 
deliver core services 
- 
HR/IT/Finance/Reve
nues & Benefits 

12

Number of 
Governance 
processes in place 
including 
monitoring of 
performance in 
performance, risk 
and audit board. 
CPBS also has its 
own board with 
governance.

8 4 2

The score has been 
reduced as there have 
been further 
improvements in 
recruitment in areas of 
IT & HR that have 
reduced the likelihood 
of CPBS failure to 
deliver core services, 
there are however still 
areas within finance 
that are being 
addressed and we will 
continue to monitor

25 Jan 
2018

2 2

Publication 
of gender 
pay gap 
under 
transparenc
y legislation

The evolution of 
Transparency 
legislation will mean 
a requirement to 
publish the gap 
between male and 
female earnings 
within pay bandings. 
This could lead to 
increased scrutiny 
from the unions 
which may trigger a 
Unison audit. The 
collateral effect of 

12

The mitigation for 
this is to 
proactively 
establish i) if there 
is a gender based 
pay gap within job 
roles and ii) to 
identify funding to 
cover any liability 
in this area should 
liability be 
identified. The 
Council advocates 
equitable and fair 

6 2 3

There is a report going 
to full council in 
February, it has been 
through the executive 
management team but 
the score remains the 
same as last quarter 
as it will still need to go 
through full council.

25 Jan 
2018

2 2

P
age 28



Title Description
Original 
Score Controls/ 

Mitigation
Current Risk 
Score Impact Likeli- 

hood

Trend 
(last 
qtr)

Latest Note
Latest 
Update 
Date

Target 
Impact

Target 
Likelihood

the risk coming to 
fruition would be 
around reputational 
damage and legal 
ramifications of 
potentially 
backdated claims 
from workers. 

treatment of its 
employees and 
would not wish to 
perpetuate any 
such discrepancy. 

Failure to 
deliver the 
council's 
Corporate 
Priorities

Would lead to 
missed targets and 
failure to deliver 
objectives and may 
result in the Council 
suffering reputational 
damage and a 
failure to deliver 
priorities to 
residents. 

4

Corporate Delivery 
Plan sets out how 
to achieve 
corporate plan and 
this is under 
pinned by 
individual service 
plans and these 
are monitored at 
Performance, Risk 
& Audit Board 
monthly

4 2 2

Risks remain 
unchanged as the 
Corporate 
improvement and 
performance team 
continue to monitor 
and work with staff 
towards achieving the 
corporate priorities. 
The annual refresh of 
the Corporate Plan 
and associated service 
level delivery plans 
has now been 
completed and during 
the next quarter staff 
appraisal setting will 
take place. This links 
individual's yearly 
objectives directly to 
the delivery of the 
council's corporate 
objectives.

25 Jan 
2018

2 2

P
age 29



Title Description
Original 
Score Controls/ 

Mitigation
Current Risk 
Score Impact Likeli- 

hood

Trend 
(last 
qtr)

Latest Note
Latest 
Update 
Date

Target 
Impact

Target 
Likelihood

Failure to 
deliver 
Local Plan 
and its 
Delivery 
Plan

Failure to deliver 
Local Plan and its 
Delivery Plan - 
reputational and 
financial risk due to 
possible Secretary of 
State intervention. 
There is also a new 
risk emerging due to 
New Homes Bonus. 

8
Dedicated senior 
officer and EMT 
support to deliver 
the local plan

4 4 1

The Local Plan 
examination continues 
to progress and a 
number of hearing 
sessions have been 
held during November 
and December. The 
Inspectors have 
indicated a desire to 
hold further hearing 
sessions in Q4 to 
explore some matters 
that were not fully 
resolved in the first 
round of hearings.

Therefore, whilst the 
examination is 
progressing positively, 
the risk rating remains 
unchanged this 
quarter.

26 Jan 
2018

4 3

Failure to 
effectively 
implement 
corporate 
business 
continuity 
plan

Failure could lead to 
an impact on 
delivery of services, 
loss of IT systems, 
ineffective 
communication or a 
failure to provide 
suitable premises 

4

Working jointly 
with County to 
have business 
continuity post. 
Each team has a 
plan reviewed 
annually

3 3 1

The emergency 
planning post is 
currently vacant but 
this risk has not 
increased for this 
quarter as recruitment 
has been underway 
and will be nearing 
completion by the time 
this report has been 
published

15 Feb 
2018

3 1

 

P
age 30



P
age 31

A
genda Item

 5.



P
age 32



P
age 33



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Page 35

Agenda Item 6.



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Annual Report on grants 
and returns 2016/17

South Holland District Council

February 2018

P
age 59

A
genda Item

 7.



2

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

© 2018 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), 
a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Contents

The contacts at KPMG 

in connection with this 

report are:

John Cornett

Director

KPMG LLP (UK)

Tel: +44 (0) 116 256 6064
john.cornett@kpmg.co.uk

Helen Brookes

Manager

KPMG LLP (UK)

Tel: +44 (0) 115 945 4476
helen.brookes@kpmg.co.uk

Jon Machej

Assistant Manager

KPMG LLP (UK)

Tel: +44 (0) 115 935 3430
jon.machej@kpmg.co.uk

Page

Headlines 3

Summary of certification work outcomes 4

Fees 6

This report is addressed to the Authority and has been prepared for the sole use of the Authority. We take no responsibility to any member of staff acting in their individual capacities, or to third parties. 
Public Sector Audit Appointments issued a document entitled Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies summarising where the responsibilities of auditors begin and end and what 
is expected from audited bodies. We draw your attention to this document which is available on Public Sector Audit Appointment’s website (www.psaa.co.uk).

External auditors do not act as a substitute for the audited body’s own responsibility for putting in place proper arrangements to ensure that public business is conducted in accordance with the law and 
proper standards, and that public money is safeguarded and properly accounted for, and used economically, efficiently and effectively.

We are committed to providing you with a high quality service. If you have any concerns or are dissatisfied with any part of KPMG’s work, in the first instance you should contact John Cornett, the 
engagement lead to the Authority, who will try to resolve your complaint. If you are dissatisfied with your response please contact the national lead partner for all of KPMG’s work under our contract 
with Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited, Andrew Sayers (andrew.sayers@kpmg.co.uk). After this, in relation to the certification of the Housing Benefit Subsidy grant claim, if you are still 
dissatisfied with how your complaint has been handled you can access PSAA’s complaints procedure by emailing generalenquiries@psaa.co.uk, by telephoning 020 7072 7445 or by writing to Public 
Sector Audit Appointments Limited, 3rd Floor, Local Government House, Smith Square, London, SW1P 3HZ.

P
age 60



3

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

© 2018 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), 
a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Introduction and background

This report summarises the results of work we have carried out on the Council’s 
2016/17 grant claims and returns. 

This includes the work we have completed under the Public Sector Audit Appointment 
certification arrangements, as well as the work we have completed on other 
grants/returns under separate engagement terms. The work completed in 2016/17 is:

– Under the Public Sector Audit Appointments arrangements we certified one claim,  
the Council’s 2016/17 Housing Benefit Subsidy claim. This had a value of £18.5 
million; and

– Under separate engagements we certified the Council’s 2016/17 Housing Pooling 
Return.

Certification and assurance results (Pages 4-5)

Housing Benefit Subsidy

Our certification work on Housing Subsidy Benefit claim included: 

– agreeing standard rates, such as for allowances and benefit incomes, to the DWP 
Circular communicating the value of each rate for the year; 

– sample testing of benefit claims to confirm that the entitlement had been 
correctly calculated and was supported by appropriate evidence; 

– undertaking an analytical review of the claim form considering year-on-year 
variances and key ratios; 

– confirming that the subsidy claim had been prepared using the correct benefits 
system version; and 

– completing testing in relation to modified schemes payments, uncashed cheques 
and verifying the accurate completion of the claim form.

As a result of issues identified in the previous year and, as a result of our initial work, it 
was necessary to perform the following additional work:

– 100% testing in relation to two specific issues where we were able to effect claim 
adjustments; and

– 40+ testing in relation to seven further issues from which we could not reach a 
conclusion as to whether the claim was fairly stated.

Following the completion of our work, the claim was subject to a qualification letter, in 
addition to a number of audit adjustments. These resulted in the amount of subsidy 
claimed increasing by £305, and the Council’s total LA error rate remaining below the 
lower threshold.

Housing Pooling Return

Our work on the Housing Pooling Return resulted in an unqualified assurance report, 
although an issue was noted in respect of the Council failing to record the capital 
receipts in relation to its Town Husbands.

Adjustments totalling £1,375 were necessary to various cells on the return as a result 
of the above issue, increasing the amount poolable receipts.

Fees (Page 6)

Our proposed fee for certifying the Council’s 2016/17 Housing Benefit Subsidy grant is 
£9,470, which is more than the indicative fee of £7,043 set by PSAA. This increase is 
due to both the number of workbooks increasing from 9 to 12 and the greater 
complexity of cases being reviewed as part of our work, with the final fee still subject 
to determination by the PSAA.

Our fees for the other assurance engagements were subject to agreement directly 
with the Council and were £3,000.

Headlines
Annual report on grants and returns 2016/17

P
age 61



4

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

© 2018 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), 
a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Overall, we carried out work 

on two grants and returns:

– one was unqualified but 

required some 

amendment to the final 

figures; and

– one required both minor 

amendment and a 

qualification to our audit 

certificate.

Detailed comments are 

provided overleaf.

Detailed below is a summary of the reporting outcomes from our work on the Council’s 2016/17 grants and returns, showing where 
either audit amendments were made as a result of our work or where we had to qualify our audit certificate or assurance report. 

A qualification means that issues were identified concerning the Council’s compliance with a scheme’s requirements that could not be 
resolved through adjustment. In these circumstances, it is likely that the relevant grant paying body will require further information from 
the Council to satisfy itself that the full amounts of grant claimed are appropriate.

Summary of reporting outcomes
Annual report on grants and returns 2016/17

Comments 
overleaf

Qualified
Significant
adjustment

Minor
adjustment 

Unqualified

Public Sector Audit 
Appointments regime

— Housing Benefit Subsidy

Other grant/return 
engagements

— Housing Pooling Return

1 0 2 1

1

2

P
age 62



5

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

© 2018 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), 
a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

This table summarises the 

key issues behind each of the 

adjustments or qualifications 

that were identified on the 

previous page.

Summary of certification work outcomes
Annual report on grants and returns 2016/17

Ref Summary observations Amendment

Housing Benefit Subsidy

Due to issues identified in the previous year and, as a result of our initial work it was necessary to perform 100% 
testing in relation to the following items/issues:

— all non-HRA rent rebate cases with earnings - this resulted in no amendments to the claim being necessary; and

— all non-HRA rent rebate board and lodging cases where the local authority was the landlord to confirm the 
correctness of the split of expenditure above and below the applicable LHA rate. This resulted in a number of 
small amendments to the claim being necessary, with an increase in the amount of subsidy due.

We had to issue a qualification letter due to various issues we identified as a result of our testing from which we 
could not reach a conclusion as to whether the claim was fairly stated. These issues included:

— errors relating to the incorrect input of the effective date of pension changes for rent rebates resulting in over 
paid benefit;

— errors relating to the misclassification of rent allowance overpayments within the claim form;

— errors relating to the incorrect processing of weekly earnings for rent allowances resulting in under and over paid 
benefit, errors with no subsidy impact and a misclassification of benefit expenditure within the claim form; and

— errors relating to the incorrect processing of child care costs for rent allowances resulting in under and over paid 
benefit..

+ £305

Housing Pooling Return

Our work in relation to the certification of this return identified the following issue:

— Capital receipts in respect of Town Husbands had not been recorded in the return..

This error had the effect of increasing the total amount of poolable receipts by the Council.

In respect of this we were able to agree cell amendments with the Council to enable us to issue an unqualified 
assurance report for this return.

+ £1,375

1

2

P
age 63



6

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

© 2018 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), 
a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Fees
Annual report on grants and returns 2016/17

Breakdown of fee by grant/return

2016/17 (£) 2015/16 (£)

Housing Benefit Subsidy claim 9,470 8,161

Housing Pooling Return 3,000 3,000

Total fee 12,470 11,161

Our fees for the Housing 

Benefit Subsidy claim are set 

by Public Sector Audit 

Appointments. 

Our fees for other assurance 

engagements on 

grants/returns are agreed 

directly with the Council.

The overall fees we charged 

for carrying out all our work 

on grants/returns in 2016/17 

was £12,470.

Public Sector Audit Appointments certification arrangements

Public Sector Audit Appointments set an indicative fee for our work on the Council’s Housing Benefit Subsidy claim in 2016/17 of £7,043. 
Our actual fee is expected to be £2,427 higher than the indicative fee (although this is still subject to determination by PSAA), and this 
compares to the 2015/16 fee for this claim of £8,161.

The main reason for the fee exceeding the original estimate is an increase in both the number of workbooks having to be completed due 
to issues identified and the complexity of individual cases being reviewed as part of our testing.

Grants subject to other engagements

The fees for our work on other grants/returns are agreed directly with the Council. Our fees for 2016/17 were in line with those in 
2015/16.

Breakdown of fees for grants and returns work

P
age 64



Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

The KPMG name and logo are registered trademarks or trademarks of KPMG International.

kpmg.com/uk

© 2018 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with 
KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), 
a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

P
age 65



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Report of: Head of Internal Audit for South Holland DC 

To: Governance and Audit Committee 15 March 2018

Author: Emma Hodds, Head of Internal Audit

Subject: Progress Report on Internal Audit Activity

Purpose: This report examines the progress made between 1 December 2017 and 28 
February 2018 in relation to the completion of the Annual Internal Audit Plan 
for 2017/18.

Recommendation(s): 

1) That members note the progress to date with the internal audit plan of work for 
2017/18.

1.0 BACKGROUND

1.1 The Governance and Audit Committee receive updates on progress made against the 
annual internal audit plan. This report forms part of the overall reporting requirements to 
assist the Council in discharging its responsibilities in relation to the internal audit activity. 

1.2 The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards require the Chief Audit Executive to report to the 
Governance and Audit Committee the performance of internal audit relative to its agreed 
plan, including any significant risk exposures and control issues. The frequency of reporting 
at South Holland is to each meeting. 

To comply with the above the report identifies: - 
o Any significant changes to the approved Audit Plan;
o Progress made in delivering the agreed audits for the year; 
o Any significant outcomes arising from those audits; and
o Performance measure outcomes to date.

2.0 CURRENT PROGRESS

2.1 The current position and issues in relation to the completion of the Annual Internal Audit 
Plan 2017/18 are shown within the report.

3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION

3.1 The Governance and Audit Committee are requested to receive and note the Progress 
Report on Internal Audit Activity.  In doing so, the Committee is ensuring that the Internal 
Audit Service remains compliant with professional auditing standards, and are fulfilling their 
terms of reference.

4.0 IMPLICATIONS

4.1 Corporate Priorities

4.1.1 Internal Audit helps to ensure that the service areas reviewed and ensuring that they are 
working towards the efficient and effective delivery of the Council’s corporate priorities.

Page 67

Agenda Item 8.



4.2 Financial 

4.2.1 The Internal Audit Plan is being delivered within the approved budget for 2017/18.

4.3 Risk Management 

44.3.1 Internal Audit planning starts with the Council’s key risks, which then directs the audit plan 
for the financial year. Internal Audit reports then identify risks and control weaknesses 
within the Council which are highlighted in this report, with appropriate management action 
being agreed to mitigate these risks within agreed timeframes.

Background papers: - None

Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post: Emma Hodds Head of Internal Audit for South Holland DC
Telephone Number: 01508 533791
Email: ehodds@s-norfolk.gov.uk

Director / Officer who will be attending the Meeting Emma Hodds

Key Decision: No

Exempt Decision: No

Appendices attached to this report:  Progress Report on Internal Audit Activity

Page 68



Page 1 of 26

Eastern Internal Audit Services

SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL

Progress Report on Internal Audit Activity

Period Covered: 1 December 2017 to 28 February 2018

Responsible Officer: Emma Hodds – Head of Internal Audit for South Holland DC

CONTENTS

1. INTRODUCTION ..............................................................................................................2

2. SIGNIFICANT CHANGES TO THE APPROVED INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN ....................2

3. PROGRESS MADE IN DELIVERING THE AGREED AUDIT WORK ..............................3

4. THE OUTCOMES ARISING FROM OUR WORK ............................................................3

5. PERFORMANCE MEASURES.........................................................................................5

APPENDIX 1 – PROGRESS IN COMPLETING THE AGREED AUDIT WORK...................7

APPENDIX 2 – AUDIT REPORT EXECUTIVE SUMMARIES............................................10

APPENDIX 3 – PERFORMANCE MEASURES..................................................................26

Page 69



Page 2 of 26

1. INTRODUCTION

1.1 This report is issued to assist the Authority in discharging its responsibilities in relation to the 
internal audit activity. 

1.2 The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards also require the Chief Audit Executive to report to 
the Audit Committee on the performance of internal audit relative to its plan, including any 
significant risk exposures and control issues. The frequency of reporting and the specific 
content are for the Authority to determine.

1.3 To comply with the above this report includes:- 

 Any significant changes to the approved Audit Plan;
 Progress made  in delivering the agreed audits for the year;
 Any significant outcomes arising from those audits; and
 Performance Indicator outcomes to date.

2. SIGNIFICANT CHANGES TO THE APPROVED INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN

2.1 At the meeting on 27 March 2017, the Annual Internal Audit Plan for the year was approved, 
identifying the specific audits to be delivered. Changes were reported to the Committee in 
September (Communications and Elections & Electoral Registration) and December 
(Democratic Services and Housing Benefit Subsidy), since then, there have been the following 
changes to the plan:

Audit description Nature of the change

Housing This review was to focus on two key areas within 
Housing, however following the implementation 
of the Place review there have been some 
fundamental changes in the Housing Services 
team. The budget has therefore been combined 
to undertake a review of the service as a whole 
and review the changes that have been made, 
concluding in a Position Statement for the service 
to work on. 

The outcomes of this review will also result in 
conclusions being reached as to the areas that 
need closer scrutiny in 2018/19.

Procurement and Contract 
Management

As the team is relatively new it has been agreed 
that the review of this service area will be 
postponed to 2018/19, and is scheduled for 
quarter one to ensure this is undertaken at the 
right time to be able to fully assess controls. 

IT audits The first audit in 2017/18 reviewed the progress 
with the work being undertaken on the IT 
infrastructure. The conclusions of this were 
positive and the two areas to be reviewed now 

Page 70



Page 3 of 26

are Change & Patch Management and ISO 
Policy Review.

3. PROGRESS MADE IN DELIVERING THE AGREED AUDIT WORK

3.1 The current position in completing audits to date within the financial year is shown in Appendix 
1 and progress to date is in line with expectations.

3.2 In summary:

101 days of programmed work has been completed by Eastern Internal Audit Services, 
equating to 73% of the (revised) Audit Plan for 2017/18.

51 days of programmed work has been completed by East Lindsey District Council, equating 
to 73 % of the (revised) Audit Plan for 2017/18.

4. THE OUTCOMES ARISING FROM OUR WORK

Eastern Internal Audit Services

4.1 On completion of each individual audit an assurance level is awarded using the following 
definitions:

Substantial Assurance: Based upon the issues identified there is a robust series of suitably 
designed internal controls in place upon which the organisation relies to manage the risks to 
the continuous and effective achievement of the objectives of the process, and which at the 
time of our review were being consistently applied.

Reasonable Assurance: Based upon the issues identified there is a series of internal controls 
in place, however these could be strengthened to facilitate the organisation’s management of 
risks to the continuous and effective achievement of the objectives of the process. 
Improvements are required to enhance the controls to mitigate these risks.

Limited Assurance: Based upon the issues identified the controls in place are insufficient to 
ensure that the organisation can rely upon them to manage the risks to the continuous and 
effective achievement of the objectives of the process. Significant improvements are required 
to improve the adequacy and effectiveness of the controls to mitigate these risks.

No Assurance: Based upon the issues identified there is a fundamental breakdown or 
absence of core internal controls such that the organisation cannot rely upon them to manage 
risk to the continuous and effective achievement of the objectives of the process. Immediate 
action is required to improve the controls required to mitigate these risks.

4.2 Recommendations made on completion of audit work are prioritised using the following 
definitions:

Urgent (priority one): Fundamental control issue on which action to implement should be 
taken within 1 month.

Important (priority two): Control issue on which action to implement should be taken within 
3 months.

Needs attention (priority three): Control issue on which action to implement should be taken 
within 6 months.

Page 71



Page 4 of 26

4.3 In addition, on completion of audit work “Operational Effectiveness Matters” are proposed, 
these set out matters identified during the assignment where there may be opportunities for 
service enhancements to be made to increase both the operational efficiency and enhance 
the delivery of value for money services. These are for management to consider and are not 
part of the follow up process.

4.4 During the period covered by the report Internal Audit Services have issued four final reports:

Audit Assurance P1 P2 P3

Housing Rents Reasonable 0 3 3

Section 106 Arrangements Limited 2 2 2

Asset Management Limited 5 2 1

Environmental Protection Limited 1 3 5

The Executive Summary of these reports are attached at Appendix 2, full copies of these 
reports can be requested by Members.

4.5 As can be seen in the table above as a result of these audits 29 recommendations have been 
raised, all of which have been agreed by management. 

Of these 29 recommendations, six have been implemented and 23 are not yet due.

4.6 In relation to the priority one recommendations the current position is as follows:

Section 106 Arrangements: both recommendations have completion dates of 30 June 2018, 
an update position will be sought at financial year end. 

Asset Management: implementation dates for the five recommendations very between 1 April 
2018 and 21 June 2018, an update position will be sought at financial year end.

Environmental Protection: this recommendation has been implemented by management. 

4.7 The areas of Section 106 Arrangements and Asset Management contain risks that if not 
appropriately mitigated by year end will need to be considered for inclusion in the Head of 
Internal Audit Annual Opinion, and ultimately for inclusion in the Annual Governance 
Statement. The related recommendations will continue to be monitored. 

Compass Point Business Services (CPBS) – Service are audits

4.8 As with the work completed by TIAA, on completion of each individual audit an assurance 
option is awarded, the principle behind the assurance is the same however they are referred 
to in different terms. The following is a comparison for Members information:

TIAA assurances CPBS assurances

Substantial assurance High assurance

Page 72



Page 5 of 26

Reasonable assurance Substantial assurance

Limited assurance Limited assurance

No assurance Low assurance

The audits also conclude with recommendations which are classed as high risk, medium risk 
or advisory points, these equate to the priority one, two and three recommendations raised by 
TIAA.

For ease of reference for Members the terminology employed by TIAA will be utilised when 
referencing this work within this report. 

4.9 The following summary is also provided for Members information with regards to the audits 
competed in this period. A full copy of the report can be requested by Members.

Accountancy Services 

The purpose of this review was to provide independent assessment of the controls in place 
for; general ledger maintenance, control accounts, asset management and treasury 
management.

The audit concluded with a reasonable assurance, raising four priority two recommendations, 
three in relation to general ledger & controls accounts and one in relation to treasury 
management. To address the associated risks, management have agreed to undertake the 
following:

1. Separation of duty to be introduced between the officer creating the journal and the officer 
approving them, the policy will also be updated to reflect this. 

2. Ensure that the Finance Team are notified of leavers through the HR leavers distribution 
list and for the system to be updated accordingly.

3. Monthly general reconciliations will be undertaken with more focus thus ensuring that 
these are timely, differences are explained and balances are correctly totalled. Spot 
checks will also be undertaken by the Financial Control Manager.

4. The treasury management work instructions will be updated following the update of the 
Treasury Management Plan to ensure that these are reflective of current practice and are 
version controlled. 

4.10 It is pleasing to note that this audit concluded in a positive opinion being awarded, indicating 
a strong and stable control environment to date, with no issues that would need to be 
considered at year end and included in the Annual Governance Statement.

5. PERFORMANCE MEASURES

5.1 The Internal Audit Services contract includes a suite of key performance measures against 
which the new contractor will be reviewed on a quarterly basis. There are a total of 11 
indicators, over 4 areas, the performance measures can be seen at Appendix 3.

5.2 There are individual requirements for performance in relation to each measure; however 
performance will be assessed on an overall basis as follows:

 9-11 KPIs have met target = Green Status.

Page 73



Page 6 of 26

 5-8 KPIs have met target = Amber Status.
 4 or below have met target = Red Status

Where performance is amber or red a Performance Improvement Plan will be developed by 
the contractor and agreed with the Head of Internal Audit to ensure that appropriate action is 
taken.

5.3 The first three quarters work has been completed and a report on the performance measures 
provided to the Head of Internal Audit, performance is currently at green status with targets 
having been satisfactorily met for this quarter.

5.4 In addition to these quarterly reports from the Contractors Audit Director, ongoing weekly 
updates are provided to ensure that delivery of the audit plan for the current financial year is 
on track. A review of the most recent update indicates that the audit plan is on track for 
completion as expected.

 

Page 74



Page 7 of 26

APPENDIX 1 – PROGRESS IN COMPLETING THE AGREED AUDIT WORK 

P
age 75



Page 8 of 26

P
age 76



Page 9 of 26

P
age 77



Page 10 of 26

APPENDIX 2 – AUDIT REPORT EXECUTIVE SUMMARIES

Assurance Review of the Housing Rents Management Arrangements

Executive Summary

OVERALL ASSURANCE ASSESSMENT ACTION POINTS

Control Area Urgent Important Needs Attention Operational

Policies and procedures 0 0 1 0

Annual Rent Charge & 
Housing Rent Income

0 0 0 0

Rent Arrears (Current and 
Former)

0 1 0 0

Amendments to Housing 
Rent Accounts

0 1 0 0

Maintenance of the 
Housing Rents System, 

including System Access

0 1 2 0

Reconciliation with other 
Key Financial Systems

0 0 0 0

Total 0 3 3 0

SCOPE

The objective of the audit was to review the systems and controls in place to help confirm that these are operating adequately, effectively and efficiently.  The audit covered setting the annual rent 
charge, housing rent income, recovery of rent arrears (former and current), amendments to housing rent accounts, maintenance of the housing rents system including system access, and 
reconciliations with other key financial systems 

P
age 78



Page 11 of 26

RATIONALE

 The systems and processes of internal control are, overall, deemed 'Reasonable Assurance' in managing the risks associated with the audit. The 
assurance opinion has been derived as a result of three 'important' and three 'needs attention' recommendations being raised upon the conclusion of 
our work.

POSITIVE FINDINGS

It is acknowledged there are areas where sound controls are in place and operating consistently:

 Annual Rent calculation parameters have been spot checked, signed and dated by the Finance Business Partner and the Business Systems Support 
Officer before the start of the financial year to confirm that the correct rents rates have been applied to the relevant customer accounts.

 Rent payment received by the Council is automatically allocated to the customer rent account using the payment reference number, thus ensuring 
payments are accurately allocated.

 Tenants with returned payments are contacted by Neighbourhood Housing Officers either through telephone conversation or a written letter with notes 
of action taken recorded on the Northgate system. Rent due is then debited back to the relevant account, thus ensuring the account is up to date and 
outstanding rents can be recovered.

 Recovery action is being taken in accordance with the written procedures for current and formal arrears cases.

 Appropriate recovery actions were taken before the debts were approved for write off, and write offs were approved within officer delegated limits.

 The suspense account is reviewed by Business Support Manager on an ongoing basis with unallocated payments investigated and allocated to the 
correct tenants accounts.

 Sold Council housing properties were promptly removed from the Housing Rent system ensuring that the stock records are up to date and accurate.

 Right To Buy (RTB) conditions were stated in Land Registry TP1 documents for properties sold under the RTB conditions.

 The housing rent system is reconciled to the cash receipting system and housing benefit system weekly, and to the general ledger monthly.

P
age 79



Page 12 of 26

ISSUES TO BE ADDRESSED

The audit has also highlighted the following areas where three 'important' recommendations have been made.

Rent Arrears (Current and Former Tenants)

 Evidence to confirm the review of rent arrears reports by management is to be retained, thus ensuring that over time all accounts in arrears are 
reviewed thereby increasing the probabilities of collecting the outstanding debts.

Amendments to Housing Rent Accounts

 All manual adjustments to rent accounts are to be independently checked for accuracy. This is to reduce the risk of inappropriate or inaccurate changes 
on the rent accounts which could lead to loss of income for the Council.

Maintenance of the Housing Rents System, including System Access

 All staff users’ access rights on the Northgate system are to be reviewed to reflect changes in job roles in relation to the changes taking place within the 
Council. This will reduce the risk of fraud where leavers still have access to the system and current staff have access rights which are more than their 
job roles require. 

The audit has also highlighted the following areas where two 'needs attention' recommendations have been made.

Policies and procedures

 The Rent Collection and Recovery Procedure is to be updated to reflect current practices, to reduce the risk of having conflicting procedures in the 
processing of housing rent.

Maintenance Of The Housing Rents System, Including System Access

 The password settings on the Northgate system is to be reviewed to ensure that passwords follow the advice of the National Cyber Security Centre.  
This will reduce the risk of passwords being broken and unauthorised individual gaining access to the Northgate system.

 Managers are to be informed to notify the Business Support Team of changes in their staff job roles by completing a change form and sending this to 
the Business Support team in a timely manner. This will reduce the risk of having staff carrying out activity outside their jurisdiction where staff access 
right is not commensurate to their job roles.

Operational Effectiveness Matters

There are no operational effectiveness matters for management to consider.

P
age 80



Page 13 of 26

Previous audit recommendations

This area has not been subject to previous audit scrutiny by Tiaa.

P
age 81



Page 14 of 26

Assurance Review of Planning - s106 Agreements 

Executive Summary

OVERALL ASSURANCE ASSESSMENT ACTION POINTS

Control Area Urgent Important Needs Attention Operational

S106 Agreements 2 2 2 0

Total 2 2 2 0

SCOPE

The audit reviewed the Council’s performance on dealing with planning applications and enforcement activities. The review also focused on Section 106 
agreements, and the processes in place for managing and monitoring this key scheme.

P
age 82



Page 15 of 26

RATIONALE

 The systems and processes of internal control are, overall, deemed 'Limited Assurance' in managing the risks associated with s106 Agreements. The 
assurance opinions have been derived as a result of two 'urgent', two 'important' and two 'needs attention' recommendations being raised upon the 
conclusion of our work.

POSITIVE FINDINGS

It is acknowledged there are areas where sound controls are in place and operating consistently:

 S106 agreements are signed and sealed by Council representatives and all other parties to the agreements. 

ISSUES TO BE ADDRESSED

The audit has highlighted the following areas whereby controls would benefit from being strengthened, and as a result of these findings two 'urgent' 
recommendations have been made.

Section 106 Agreements

 A comprehensive review of all s106 agreements is to be completed, the review is to ensure that that the records include all trigger points, both financial 
and other planning obligations, along with responsible officers. This will reduce the risk that the Council overlooks / does not enforce all its s106 planning 
obligations and any financial loss and reputational damage to the Council.

 The Council is to assign responsible officers for monitoring financial and non-financial obligations contained in s106 agreements , to monitor when trigger 
points are reached to ensure the Council receives the obligations. A summary to be submitted to the joint Finance Board to provide oversight that 
obligations are monitored and received. This will help to reduce the risks of the Council missing out of the vital benefits from the s106 agreements and 
developers reclaiming commuted sums not been spent in accordance with the required timescales.

P
age 83



Page 16 of 26

The audit has also highlighted the following areas where two 'important' recommendations have been made.

Section 106 Agreements

 A local procedure is to be devised detailing how the Council is to progress s106 agreements and subsequent monitoring of the obligations contained 
therein, this is to reduce the risk of having inconsistent practices being developed with key obligations being overlooked. 

 A formal process is to be introduced to ensure Finance (CPBS) is informed of all s106 monies received and any payments made, with monitoring records 
updated accordingly. This will reduce the risk of incorrect coding of s106 monies on the ledger and ensuring that the monies are used for the purpose 
intended.

The audit has also highlighted the following areas where two 'needs attention' recommendations have been made.

Section 106 Agreements

 Written evidence of having reviewed and agreed the content of s106 agreements by interested departments and other relevant authorities be obtained 
and retained on file to reduce the risk of the Council losing out on vital benefits where approval from relevant departments or other relevant authorities is 
not received before the agreement is finalised.

 Finance is to review the current status of all s106 monies and to ensure updates are provided to and reviewed at subsequent meetings of the Finance 
Board as a standard agenda item. Management scrutiny and oversight will ensure that s106 monies are correctly accounted for and are spent as per 
their conditions.  

Operational Effectiveness Matters

No operational effectiveness matters have been raised. 

Previous audit recommendations

This area has not been subject to previous internal audit scrutiny.

P
age 84



Page 17 of 26

Assurance Review of the Asset Management Arrangements

Executive Summary

OVERALL ASSURANCE ASSESSMENT ACTION POINTS

Control Area Urgent Important Needs Attention Operational

Strategies, Policies and 
Procedures

1 1 0 0

Lease Renewals, Re-
letting and Rental Arrears

4 1 1 0

Total 5 2 1 0

No recommendations have been raised in respect of acquisitions and disposals, 
maintenance and insurance, property valuation and asset reconciliation.

SCOPE

The objective of the audit was to review the system and control in place in for the Council to proactively manage its assets, in particular, having a clear strategies, 
policies and procedures, acquisitions and disposals, lease renewals, rent, re-letting and rental arrears, maintenance and insurance, property valuation, and 
asset reconciliation, to help confirm that these are operating adequately, effectively and efficiently.

P
age 85



Page 18 of 26

RATIONALE

 The systems and processes of internal control are, overall, deemed. 'Limited' in managing the risks associated with the audit. The assurance opinion 
has been derived as a result of five ‘urgent’, two 'important' and one 'needs attention' recommendations being raised upon the conclusion of our work.

POSITIVE FINDINGS

It is acknowledged there are areas where sound controls are in place and operating consistently:

 Commercial property and contents insurance is in place, which includes all required categories; commercial buildings, building for private dwellings and 
content of both categories of building.

 The Council's commercial property portfolio was revalued by Wilks Head and Eve Chartered Surveyors and Town Planners on 31st March 2017, this 
ensuring that the portfolio value is up to date and reflects current condition. 

 The value of assets on the valuation reports reconciled to value of assets on the asset register, with the 2016/17 asset control account reconciliation 
being prepared and reviewed.

ISSUES TO BE ADDRESSED

The audit has highlighted the following areas whereby controls would benefit from being strengthened, and as a result of these findings five 'urgent' 
recommendations have been made.

Strategies, Policies and Procedures

 The Asset Management Strategy requires review and update to take account of the outcomes of the recent Place review and remove operational detail 
which is subject to change over a short period of time and can result of the Strategy becoming quickly obsolete. The operational detail should form part 
of policy and procedure instead.   This will reduce the risk of having an obsolete Asset Management strategy in circulation and then need for unnecessary 
review and approval.

P
age 86



Page 19 of 26

Lease renewals, rent, re-letting and rental arrears

 The Council is to undertake a programme of review of the current lease agreements, where these have expired new agreements are to be entered into. 
For new tenants lease agreements must be entered into as a matter of course, there is then the requirements to ensure that review dates are diarised to 
ensure that ongoing review of all lease agreements is undertaken. This will reduce the risk of loss of income to the Council where a lease and an increase 
in rent is not reviewed and communicated to tenants and will also ensure that up to date and relevant lease agreements are in place.

 End of tenancy inspection is to be carried out by the Council, with a checklist completed to record any repair works on property and costs being recovered 
from the (previous) tenants where applicable. This will help reduce the risk of the financial loss to the Council for damages where tenants fail to pay for 
wilful and accidental damages to property.

 There needs to be ownership and accountability to ensure that invoices are raised for all rent due, and appropriate debt recovery action taken where 
relevant. To ensure that this is achieved there needs to be a reconciliation between the lease payments reports from the financial system and the lease 
agreements held by the Council, thus ensuring that all tenants occupying Council’s properties are invoiced and paying rent as required. This will help 
reduce the risk of loss of income to the Council where rents due have not been identified nor invoices raised to demand the rents due from tenants. 

 Rent free periods granted to tenants is to be documented and monitored with details of justification, approval, and duration of the rent-free period retained 
on file. This will reduce the risk of loss of rental income to the Council where the rent free period elapses and the rend due is not paid by the tenant.

The audit has also highlighted the following areas where two ‘important’ recommendations have been made.

Strategies, Policies and Procedures

 The Corporate Land and Property Policy is to be updated and this should include version control information stating when the document is next due for 
a review. This will reduce the risk of staff not abiding by current guidelines leading to challenges and reputational damage to the Council.

Lease renewals, rent, re-letting and rental arrears

 The letting policy is to be updated to reflect current practices such as not obtaining deposit from tenants in the industrial units. This will reduce the risk of 
staff following obsolete policy, thereby leading to dissatisfied customers and an increase in complaints received by the Council.

The audit has also highlighted the following areas where one 'needs attention' recommendation has been made.

Lease renewals, rent, re-letting and rental arrears

 The CPBS finance team is to conduct a training session for the budget holders in this area on how to interpret the information on the monthly finance 
reports, such as ‘Customer Invoice Balances’ list monthly report which is uploaded on the South Holland DC portal. This will reduce the risk of budget 
holders ignoring or misinterpreting information on the finance reports provided to them. This training should also be considered for wider roll out. 

P
age 87



Page 20 of 26

Operational Effectiveness Matters

No operational effectiveness matters were raised.

Other Issues Identified

A Service Level Agreement (SLA) between Breckland and South Holland is currently being drafted for using Breckland officers to manage South Holland’s 
industrial units, with this expected to be in place by 31st March 2018. 

The Councils "moving forward programme" had looked at the financial viability of running certain assets which have been included in this programme of activity, 
namely the South Holland Centre and Ayscoughee. An exercise is currently underway looking at the feasibility of commercialising these assets.  This work may 
help inform the use of the asset in the future, although does not impact on the assets as they sit at the moment. It does though demonstrate how the Council is 
proactively looking at the future of these assets in the longer term although this work is excluded from the scope of this audit. The audit covered operational 
and non-operational assets but excluded HRA related assets. It also took into account the outcomes of the Place review in terms of findings that arise and the 
proposed recommendations. 

As a result of the Place review all assets will be brought under one service to ensure a consistent and pro-active approach to the management of assets. The 
recommendations made in this report will ensure that controls going forward are robust and provide a starting point for the service areas. 

P
age 88



Page 21 of 26

Assurance Review of Environmental Protection

Executive Summary

OVERALL ASSURANCE ASSESSMENT ACTION POINTS

Control Area Urgent Important Needs Attention Operational

Contaminated Land 0 2 4* 0

Air Quality 1 1 2* 0

Private Water Supplies 
(Breckland only) 0 4 2* 0

Total 1 7 8 0

*Two recommendations apply to all three scope areas.

SCOPE

The objective of the audit was to review the systems and controls in place within Environmental Protection at Breckland District Council and South Holland 
District Council. This audit focused on air quality and contaminated land (at both Councils) and private water supplies (at Breckland only), to help confirm that 
these systems and controls are operating adequately, effectively and efficiently.

P
age 89



Page 22 of 26

RATIONALE

 The systems and processes of internal control are, overall, deemed 'Limited' in managing the risks associated with the audit. The assurance opinion has 
been derived as a result of one 'urgent', seven 'important' and eight 'needs attention' recommendations being raised upon the conclusion of our work.

POSITIVE FINDINGS

It is acknowledged there are areas where sound controls are in place and operating consistently:

 There is a system in place across both Councils to manage the processes where user access rights are restricted to relevant, authorised personnel.

 There is a process in place for the assessment of potentially contaminated land and the placement of conditions through the planning process at both 
Councils, thus ensuring that the Council is monitoring and acting upon land where a risk of contamination is posed.

 There is a process in place at both Councils for the monitoring, management and annual reporting of air quality in line with the statutory requirements 
and action plans have been produced where required.

 Breckland Council maintains a record of all private water supplies and linked properties within the Flare system which is maintained and accessible to 
staff, thus ensuring that the Council is aware of and can monitor the water quality of private water supplies within the District.

ISSUES TO BE ADDRESSED

The audit has highlighted the following areas whereby controls would benefit from being strengthened, and as a result of these findings one 'urgent' 
recommendation has been made.

Air Quality

 Documentation be retained for all aspects of environmental permitting including: inspections, fee receipt, permit renewals and permit variations, thereby 
reducing the risk of invalid permits being issued and renewed, which may lead to breaches in regulations and fines being levied. (South Holland)

The audit has also highlighted the following areas where seven 'important' recommendations have been made.

P
age 90



Page 23 of 26

Contaminated Land

 Documented procedures be put in place for contaminated land processes, which are to include a contingency procedure, thereby reducing the risk of 
tasks not being completed or being completed incorrectly and to ensure that the statutory requirements are adhered to. (Both Councils)

 A central record be compiled and maintained of sites within the District where contamination is possible, thereby reducing the risk of potential 
contamination occurring where sites have been unidentified, unaccounted for and not monitored. (South Holland)

Air Quality

 The Council to ensure that the correct fee amount and method of charging is levied for annual subsistence fees charged for permits issued, thereby 
reducing the risk of fees being incorrectly levied which may lead to a loss of income and a contravention of regulations. (South Holland)

Private Water Supplies

 A risk assessment programme be implemented and maintained for private water supplies, thereby reducing the likelihood of risk assessments becoming 
overdue and / or unaccounted for, reducing the risk to people's health through drinking contaminated water and non-compliance with the Private Water 
Supplies Regulations 2009. (Breckland)

 The risk associated with the backlog of private water supply risk assessments is to be assessed by management, and appropriate mitigation action put 
in place, which is then regularly monitored and reported on. This will reduce the risk of backlogs increasing and becoming unmanageable and 
consequently, reduce the risk to people’s health through drinking contaminated water and non-compliance with the Private Water Supplies Regulations 
2009. (Breckland)

 A report be presented to senior management on backlogs experienced for completing private water supply risk assessments in a timely manner. This will 
reduce the risk of backlogs being given insufficient attention and follow up and consequently, reduce the risk to people’s health through drinking 
contaminated water and non-compliance with the Private Water Supplies Regulations 2009. (Breckland)

 The Council is to ensure that prompt action is undertaken where failures in private water supply sampling is identified, in line with policy and regulatory 
requirements, thereby reducing the risk of people’s health being at risk through drinking contaminated water and non-compliance with the Private Water 
Supplies Regulations 2009. (Breckland)

The audit has also highlighted the following areas where eight 'needs attention' recommendations have been made.

 Version control be implemented for all procedure notes retained in relation to contaminated land (Breckland and South Holland), environmental permitting 
(South Holland) and private water supplies (Breckland), thereby reducing the risk of outdated or inaccurate procedures being adhered to. (Both Councils)

 Documented, regular and independent sample checks of permits issued, contaminated land searches and planning application consultations and private 
water supply risk assessments and sampling be undertaken, thereby reducing the risk of tasks being completed erroneously or fraudulently. (Both 
Councils)

P
age 91



Page 24 of 26

Contaminated Land

 A policy be implemented with supporting procedure notes for undertaking contaminated land search enquiries, thereby reducing the risk of services being 
provided with no charges or incorrect charges levied. (Both Councils)

 Contaminated land search enquiries be acknowledged and responded to within the prescribed target dates set, thereby reducing the risk of complaints 
being received where acknowledgements and responses are not timely. (South Holland)

Air Quality

 The environmental permitting page of the Councils' websites be updated to provide the correct information and documentation, thereby reducing the risk 
of disputes arising where website users are misled by or relying upon inaccurate information. (Both Councils)

 Independent checks be undertaken on environmental permitting annual subsistence fees to be raised by the Council, thereby reducing the risk of income 
not being received or unaccounted for where charges are incorrect. (Breckland)

Private Water Supplies

 Documented procedures be put in place for private water supply risk assessments. This reduces the risk of tasks not being completed or being completed 
incorrectly and consequently, reduces the risk to people’s health through drinking contaminated water and non-compliance with the Private Water 
Supplies Regulations 2009. (Breckland)

 Evidence of breakdown/calculation be retained of the fees charged for each private water supply sample undertaken, thereby reducing the risk of incorrect 
fees being charged leading to financial loss for the Council. (Breckland)

Operational Effectiveness Matters

There are no operational effectiveness matters for management to consider.

Other issues of note

Testing identified a backlog of risk assessments for private water supplies. This backlog arose due to changes in regulation, a lack of resource within the team 
and other work being given a higher priority. The Environmental Protection Manager stated that, on the back of previous Drinking Water Inspectorate (DWI) 
return issues, the identification and consideration of the risk assessments needing attention has been an ongoing process for some time and the team now has 
a good understanding of the risk assessments outstanding. The backlog of risk assessments and limitation on resource has also impacted on the sampling 
requirements for private water supplies. Recommendations have been raised within this report to ensure that the risks posed by the lack of risk assessment 
and sampling requirements are accounted for. 

Audit identified that, the Local Air Quality Management Annual Progress Report 2017 for South Holland has not been submitted to DEFRA and published on 
the Council's website. Although a draft report has been produced, the delay in submission is due to a consultation being undertaken with DEFRA regarding 
funding required to undertake extra investigatory work before the final report can be submitted. Audit has been informed that this consultation is on-going.

P
age 92



Page 25 of 26

P
age 93



Page 26 of 26

APPENDIX 3 – PERFORMANCE MEASURES

Area / Indicator Target
Audit Committee / Senior Management

1. Audit Committee Satisfaction – 
measured annually

2. Chief Finance Officer Satisfaction – 
measured quarterly

Adequate

Good

Internal Audit Process
3. Each quarters audits completed to draft 

report within 10 working days of the end 
of the quarter

4. Quarterly assurance reports to the 
Contract Manager within 15 working 
days of the end of each quarter

5. An audit file supporting each review and 
showing clear evidence of quality control 
review shall be completed prior to the 
issue of the draft report ( a sample of 
these will be subject to quality review by 
the Contract Manager)

6. Compliance with Public Sector Internal 
Audit Standards

7. Respond to the Contract Manager within 
3 working days where unsatisfactory 
feedback has been received.

100%

100%

100%

Full

100%

Clients
8. Average feedback score received from 

key clients (auditees)
9. Percentage of recommendations 

accepted by management

Adequate

90%

Innovations and Capabilities
10. Percentage of qualified (including 

experienced) staff working on the 
contract each quarter

11. Number of training hours per member of 
staff completed per quarter 

60%

1 day

Page 94



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report of: Head of Internal Audit 

To: Governance and Audit Committee, 15 March 2018

Author: Emma Hodds, Head of Internal Audit

Subject: Strategic and Annual Internal Audit Plans 2018/19

Purpose: This report provides an overview of the stages followed prior to the 
formulation of the Strategic Internal Audit Plan for 2018/19 to 2020/21 and the 
Annual Internal Audit Plan for 2018/19. 
The Annual Internal Audit Plan will then serve as the work programme for the 
Council’s Internal Audit Services Contractor; TIAA Ltd. 
It will also provide the basis for the Annual Audit Opinion on the overall 
adequacy and effectiveness of South Holland District Council’s framework of 
governance, risk management and control.

Recommendation(s):

1) That the Committee notes and approves:

a) the Internal Audit Strategy for 2018/19;
b) the Strategic Internal Audit Plans 2018/19 to 2020/21; and
c) the Annual Internal Audit Plan 2018/19.

1.0 BACKGROUND

1.1 The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 require that “a relevant authority must undertake 
an effective internal audit to evaluate the effectiveness of its risk management, control and 
governance processes, taking into account public sector internal auditing standards or 
guidance”.

1.2 Those standards are set out in the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) which 
came into effect in April 2013.

1.3 The attached report contains; 

o the Internal Audit Strategy, which is a strategic high level statement on how the 
internal audit service will be delivered and developed in accordance with the charter 
and how it links to the organisational objectives and priorities;

o the Strategic Internal Audit Plan, which details the plan of work for the next three 
financial years;

o the Annual Internal Audit Plan, which details the timing and the purpose of each 
audit agreed for inclusion in 2018/19; and

o provides the Committee with the performance measures against which the 
contractor will be monitored.

Page 95

Agenda Item 9.



2.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

2.1 The risk-based internal audit plans will add real value to the Council, have a defined and 
specific scope for each review and ensure that risks in relation to the service area are being 
reviewed by Internal Audit, thus enabling best practice to be followed.

3.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS

3.1 The Council’s key business risks will be addressed by Internal Audit, thus ensuring that 
appropriate controls are in place to mitigate such risks and also ensure that the appropriate 
and proportionate level of action is taken.

3.2 The Internal Audit Service will be seen to add value, become a useful management tool 
and link more directly to the Council’s risk management processes

4.0 IMPLICATIONS

4.1 Corporate Priorities

4.1.1 Internal Audit helps to ensure that the service areas and risks reviewed are working 
towards the efficient and effective delivery of the Council’s corporate priorities.

4.2 Financial

4.2.1 The Internal Audit Service is provided by way of a Partnership Agreement with South 
Norfolk Council, whereby South Norfolk Council provide the role of the Head of Internal 
Audit and Contract Manager to South Holland District Council, and the service provision i.e. 
delivery of the audits, is provided through a contract with TIAA Ltd. The 2018/19 plans have 
been set within the approved budget.

4.3 Risk Management 

4.3.1 The Risk Based Internal Audit approach will ensure that the Council’s key risks are 
accurately reviewed and updated and thus the Internal Audit Service is adding value and 
auditing the key risk areas.

4.4 Stakeholders / Consultation / Timescales

4.4.1 The Strategic and Annual Internal Audit Plans for 2018/19 have been consulted upon with 
Senior Managers, the Executive Management Team and External Audit, prior to coming to 
the Committee.

Background papers: None

Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post:  Emma Hodds, Head of Internal Audit
Telephone Number: 01508 533791
Email: ehodds@s-norfolk.gov.uk

Director / Officer who will be attending the Meeting: Emma Hodds, Head of Internal Audit

Key Decision: No

Page 96



Exempt Decision:  No

Appendices attached to this report: Strategic and Annual Internal Audit Plans 2018/19

Page 97



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 of 16

Eastern Internal Audit Services

SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL

Strategic and Annual Internal Audit Plans 2018/19

Responsible Officer: Head of Internal Audit

CONTENTS

1. INTRODUCTION .............................................................................................................2
2. AUDIT CHARTER............................................................................................................2
3. INTERNAL AUDIT STRATEGY.......................................................................................3
4. STRATEGIC INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN ...........................................................................3
5. ANNUAL INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN .................................................................................3
6. PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT ..................................................................................4
APPENDIX 1 – INTERNAL AUDIT STRATEGY ....................................................................5
APPENDIX 2 – STRATEGIC INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN.........................................................9
APPENDIX 3 – ANNUAL INTENAL AUDIT PLAN ...............................................................12
APPENDIX 4 – PERFORMANCE MEASURES ...................................................................16

Page 99



Page 2 of 16

1. INTRODUCTION

1.1 The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 require that “a relevant authority must undertake 
an effective internal audit to evaluate the effectiveness of its risk management, control and 
governance processes, taking into account public sector internal auditing standards or 
guidance”.

1.2 The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) mandate a periodic preparation of a risk-
based plan, which must incorporate or be linked to a strategic high level statement on how the 
internal audit service will be delivered and developed in accordance with the charter and how 
it links to the organisational objectives and priorities, this is set out in the Internal Audit 
Strategy.

1.3 Risk is defined as 'the possibility of an event occurring that will have an impact on the 
achievement of objectives’. Risk can be a positive and negative aspect, so as well as 
managing things that could have an adverse impact (downside risk) it is also important to look 
at potential benefits (upside risk).

1.4 The development of a risk-based plan takes into account the organisation's risk management 
framework. The process identifies the assurance (and consulting) assignments for a specific 
period, by identifying and prioritising all those areas on which objective assurance is required. 
This is then also applied when carrying out individual risk based assignments to provide 
assurance on part of the risk management framework, including the mitigation of individual or 
groups of risks. 

1.5 The following factors are also taken into account when developing the internal audit plan:

 Any declarations of interest so as to avoid conflicts of interest;
 The requirements of the use of specialists e.g. IT auditors;
 Striking the right balance over the range of reviews needing to be delivered, for 

example systems and risk based reviews, specific key controls testing, value for money 
and added value reviews;

 The relative risk maturity of the Council;
 Allowing contingency time to undertake ad-hoc reviews or fraud investigations as 

necessary;
 The time required to carry out the audit planning process effectively as well as regular 

reporting to and attendance at Governance and Audit Committee, the development of 
the annual report and opinion and the Quality Assurance and Improvement 
Programme.

1.6 In accordance with best practice the Governance and Audit Committee should ‘review and 
assess the annual internal audit work plan’. 

2. AUDIT CHARTER

2.1 The Internal Audit Charter (the Charter) was developed as part of the planning process in 
2014/15 and incorporated the requirements of the PSIAS, this was updated in 2015/16 to more 
accurately reflect the working arrangements with the Internal Audit Contractor – TIAA Ltd. 

2.2 The Charter was updated in 2017 to also reflect the new Internal Professional Practices 
Framework (IPPF) and PSIAS – and in particular the mission statement and core principles. 
The Charter now also more explicitly includes reference to the mandatory nature of the Core 
Principles for the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing, the Code of Ethics, and the 
International Standards.

Page 100



Page 3 of 16

2.3 There is an obligation under the PSIAS for the Charter to be periodically reviewed and 
presented. This Charter is therefore reviewed annually by the Head of Internal Audit to confirm 
its ongoing validity and completeness, and presented to the Section 151 Officer, Senior 
Management and the Governance and Audit Committee every 2 years, or as required for 
review. 

2.4 As part of the review of the Audit Charter the Code of Ethics are also reviewed by the Head of 
Internal Audit, and it is ensured that the Internal Audit Services contractor staff, as well as the 
Head of Internal Audit adhere to these, specifically with regard to; integrity, objectivity, 
confidentiality and competency. Formal sign off to acceptance of the Code of Ethics is retained 
by the Head of Internal Audit.

3. INTERNAL AUDIT STRATEGY

3.1 The purpose of the Internal Audit Strategy (see Appendix 1) is to confirm:

 How internal audit services will be delivered;
 How internal audit services will be developed in accordance with the internal audit 

charter;
 How internal audit services links to organisational objectives and priorities; and
 How the internal audit resource requirements have been assessed.

4. STRATEGIC INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN

4.1 The overarching objective of the Strategic Internal Audit Plan (see Appendix 2) is to provide 
a comprehensive programme of review work over the next three years, with each year 
providing sufficient audit coverage to give annual opinions, which can be used to inform the 
organisation’s Annual Governance Statement.

4.2 The coverage over the forthcoming years has been discussed with Executive Management 
Team to ensure that audits are undertaken at the right time, at a time where value can be 
added, as well as ensuring sufficient coverage for an Annual Opinion on the framework of 
governance, risk management and control. The discussions also went into greater detail in 
relation to the scope of the audits for the forthcoming financial year.

4.3 The Strategic Plan has also taken account of the two audits that were brought forward from 
2017/18; Democratic Services and Procurement & Contract Management as previously 
reported through to the Governance and Audit Committee. 

5. ANNUAL INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN

5.1 Having developed the Strategic Internal Audit Plan, the Annual Internal Audit Plan is an extract 
of this for the forthcoming financial year (see Appendix 3). This details the areas being 
reviewed by Internal Audit, the number of days for each review, the quarter during which the 
audit will take place and a brief summary / purpose of the review and highlights those audit 
reviews which we be jointly undertaken with Breckland DC.

5.2 The Annual Internal Audit Plan for 2018/19 totals 261 days, 196 of which is provided by 
Eastern Internal Audit Services and 65 days of which are for review of the services provided 
by Compass Point Business Services (CPBS) Ltd.

Page 101



Page 4 of 16

5.3 The work provided by Eastern Internal Audit Services encompasses 16 audits, nine of which 
will be jointly carried out at Breckland DC and South Holland DC.

5.4 Audit verification work concerning audit recommendations implemented to improve the 
Council’s internal control environment will also be undertaken throughout the financial year.

5.5 The audits of CPBS services are to review the key controls which feed into the statement of 
the accounts, and then two further reviews will be undertaken focusing on service areas in 
more depth, these will be determined at a later date and subsequently reported to Committee. 
In addition, a review of the Housing Benefit Subsidy work is undertaken for the external 
auditors (KPMG).

5.6 The Head of Internal Audit is a member of the Finance Board and attends the Performance, 
Risk and Audit Board as appropriate, both of which have established terms of reference. 
Participating in these Boards results in a greater awareness of Council business and key 
activities and has also resulted in good working relationships being maintained with key 
officers.

6. PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT

6.1 The Internal Audit Services contract includes a suite of key performance indicators (see 
Appendix 5) against which the new contractor will be reviewed on a quarterly basis. There 
are a total of 11 indicators, over 4 areas. 

6.2 There are individual requirements for performance in relation to each indicator; however 
performance will be assessed on an overall basis as follows (for the first year):

 9-11 KPIs have met target = Green Status.
 5-8 KPIs have met target = Amber Status.
 4 or below have met target = Red Status.

Where performance is amber or red a Performance Improvement Plan will be developed and 
agreed with the contractor to ensure that appropriate action is taken.

6.3 Performance in relation to these indicators will be reported to the Committee as part of the 
Progress Reports and the Annual Report and Opinion, ensuring that Members are kept up to 
date on a regular basis.

Page 102



Page 5 of 16

APPENDIX 1 – INTERNAL AUDIT STRATEGY

EASTERN INTERNAL AUDIT SERVICES
BRECKLAND AND SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCILS

INTERNAL AUDIT STRATEGY FOR 2018/19

1. Introduction

1.1 The Internal Audit Strategy is a high-level statement of;
 how the internal audit service will be delivered;
 how internal audit services will be developed in accordance with the internal audit 

charter;
 how internal audit services links to the organisational objectives and priorities; and
 how the internal audit resource requirements have been assessed.

The provision of such a strategy is set out in the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (the 
standards).

1.2 The purpose of the strategy is to provide a clear direction for internal audit services and creates 
a link between the Charter, the strategic plan and the annual plan.

2. How the internal audit service will be delivered

2.1 The Role of the Head of Internal Audit and contract management is provided by South Norfolk 
Council to; Breckland, Broadland, North Norfolk, South Holland and South Norfolk District 
Councils, Great Yarmouth Borough Council and The Broads Authority. All Authorities are 
bound by a Partnership Agreement.

2.2 The delivery of the internal audit plans for each Authority is provided by an external audit 
contractor, who reports directly to the Head of Internal Audit. The current contract is with TIAA 
Ltd, and commenced on 1 April 2015, for an initial period of 5 years.

3. How internal audit services will be developed in accordance with the internal audit 
charter

3.1 Internal Audit objective and outcomes

3.1.1 Internal audit is an independent, objective assurance and consulting activity designed to add 
value and improve the Authority’s operations. It helps the Authority accomplish its objectives 
by bringing a systematic, disciplined approach to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of 
risk management, control and governance processes.

3.1.2 The outcomes of the internal audit service are detailed in the Internal Audit Charter and can 
be summarised as; delivering a risk based audit plan in a professional, independent manner, 
to provide the Authority with an opinion on the level of assurance it can place upon the internal 
control environment, systems of risk management and corporate governance arrangements, 
and to make recommendations to improve these provisions, where further development would 
be beneficial.

3.1.3 The reporting of the outcomes from internal audit is through direct reports to senior 
management in respect of the areas reviewed under their remit, in the form of an audit report. 
The Governance and Audit Committee for each Council and the Section 151 Officer also 
receive:

Page 103



Page 6 of 16

 The Audit Plans Report, which is risk based and forms the next financial year’s plan of 
work;

 The Progress Reports which provide summaries of the work achieved throughout the 
year and the individual opinions awarded on conclusion of reviews;

 The Follow Up Reports which detail the level of management action taken in respect 
of agreed internal audit recommendations; and

 The Annual Report and Opinion on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the 
Authority’s framework of governance, risk management and control.

3.2 Internal Audit Planning

3.2.1 A risk-based internal audit plan (RBIA) is established in consultation with senior management 
that identifies where assurance and consultancy is required.

3.2.2 The audit plan establishes a link between the proposed audit areas and the priorities and risks 
of the Authority taking into account:

 Stakeholder expectations, and feedback from senior and operational managers;
 Objectives set in the strategic plan and business plans;
 Risk maturity in the organisation to provide an indication of the reliability of risk 

registers;
 Management’s identification and response to risk, including risk mitigation strategies 

and levels of residual risk;
 Legal and regulatory requirements;
 The audit universe – all the audits that could be performed; and
 Previous IA plans and the results of audit engagements.

3.2.3 In order to ensure that the internal audit service adds value to the Authority, assurance should 
be provided that major business risks are being managed appropriately, along with providing 
assurance over the system of internal control, risk management and governance processes.

3.2.4 Risk based internal audit planning starts with the Authority’s Business Plan, linking through to 
the priority areas and the related high-level objectives. The focus is then on the risks, and 
opportunities, that may hinder, or help, the achievement of the objectives. The approach also 
focuses on the upcoming projects and developments for the Authority.

3.2.5 The approach ensures; better and earlier identification of risks and increased ability to control 
them; greater coherence with the Authority’s priorities; an opportunity to engage with 
stakeholders; the Committee and Senior Management better understand how the internal 
audit service helps to accomplish its objectives; and this ensures that best practice is followed.

3.2.6 The key distinction with establishing plans derived from a risk based internal audit approach 
is that the focus should be to understand and analyse management’s assessment of risk and 
to base audit plans and efforts around that process.

3.2.7 Consultation with the Section 151 Officer and Senior Management takes place through 
specific meetings during which current and future developments, changes, risks and areas of 
concern are discussed and the plan amended accordingly to take these into account. 

3.2.8 The outcome of this populates a strategic internal audit plan, and the resulting annual internal 
audit plan, which are discussed with and approved by the Executive Management team prior 
to these being brought to the respective Governance and Audit Committee. In addition, 
External Audit is also provided with early sight of the plans.

Page 104



Page 7 of 16

3.3 Internal Audit Annual Opinion

3.3.1 The annual opinion provides Senior Management and the respective Governance and Audit 
Committee with an assessment of the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the Authority’s 
framework of governance, risk management and control.

3.3.2 The opinion is based upon:
 The summary of the internal audit work carried out;
 The follow up of management action taken to ensure implementation of agreed action 

as at financial year end;
 Any reliance placed upon third party assurances;
 Any issues that are deemed particularly relevant to the Annual Governance Statement 

(AGS);
 The Annual Review of the Effectiveness of Internal Audit, which includes; 

o A statement on conformance with the standards and the results of any quality 
assurance and improvement programme,

o  the outcomes of the performance indicators and 
o the degree of compliance with CIPFA’s Statement on the Role of the Head of 

Internal Audit.

3.3.3 In order to achieve the above internal audit operates within the standards and uses a risk 
based approach to audit planning and to each audit assignment undertaken. The control 
environment for each audit area reviewed is assessed for its adequacy and effectiveness of 
the controls and an assurance rating applied.

4. How internal audit services links to the organisational objectives and priorities

4.1 In addition to the approach taken as outlined in section 3.2 (Internal Audit Planning), which 
ensures that the service links to the organisations objectives and priorities and thereby through 
the risk based approach adds value, internal audit also ensure an awareness is maintained of 
local and national Issues and risks.

4.2 The annual audit planning process ensures that new or emerging risks are identified and 
considered at a local level. This strategy ensures that the planning process is all 
encompassing and reviews the records held by the Authority in respect of risks and issue logs 
and registers, reports that are taken through the Authority Committee meetings, and through 
extensive discussions with senior management.

4.3 Awareness of national issues is maintained through the contract in place with the external 
internal audit provider through regular “horizon scanning” updates, and annually a particular 
focus provided on issues to be considered during the planning process. Membership and 
subscription to professional bodies such as the Institute of Internal Auditors and the CIPFA 
on-line query service, liaison with External Audit, and networking with, all help to ensure 
developments are noted and incorporated where appropriate.

5. How internal audit resource requirements have been assessed

5.1 Through utilising an external audit contractor the risk based internal audit plan can be 
developed without having to take into account the existing resources, as you would with an in-
house team, thus ensuring that audit coverage for the year is appropriate to the Authority’s 
needs and not tied to a particular resource.

Page 105



Page 8 of 16

5.2 That said a core team of staff is provided to deliver the audit plan, and these staff bring with 
them considerable public sector knowledge and experience. These core staff can be 
supplemented with additional staff should the audit plan require it, and in addition specialists, 
e.g. computer auditors, contract auditor, fraud specialists, can be drafted in to assist in 
completing the internal audit plan and focusing on particular areas of specialism.

5.3 All audit professionals are encouraged to continually develop their skills and knowledge 
through various training routes; formal courses of study, in-house training, seminars and 
webinars. As part of the contract with TIAA Ltd the contractor needs to ensure that each 
member of staff completes a day’s training per quarter.

Page 106



Page 9 of 16

APPENDIX 2 – STRATEGIC INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN

P
age 107



Page 10 of 16

P
age 108



Page 11 of 16

P
age 109



Page 12 of 16

APPENDIX 3 – ANNUAL INTENAL AUDIT PLAN

P
age 110



Page 13 of 16

P
age 111



Page 14 of 16

P
age 112



Page 15 of 16

P
age 113



Page 16 of 16

APPENDIX 4 – PERFORMANCE MEASURES

Area / Indicator Target
Audit Committee / Senior Management

1. Audit Committee Satisfaction – 
measured annually

2. Chief Finance Officer Satisfaction – 
measured quarterly

Adequate

Good

Internal Audit Process
3. Each quarters audits completed to draft 

report within 10 working days of the end 
of the quarter

4. Quarterly assurance reports to the 
Contract Manager within 15 working 
days of the end of each quarter

5. An audit file supporting each review and 
showing clear evidence of quality control 
review shall be completed prior to the 
issue of the draft report ( a sample of 
these will be subject to quality review by 
the Contract Manager)

6. Compliance with Public Sector Internal 
Audit Standards

7. Respond to the Contract Manager within 
3 working days where unsatisfactory 
feedback has been received.

100%

100%

100%

Full

100%

Clients
8. Average feedback score received from 

key clients (auditees)
9. Percentage of recommendations 

accepted by management

Adequate

90%

Innovations and Capabilities
10. Percentage of qualified (including 

experienced) staff working on the 
contract each quarter

11. Number of training hours per member of 
staff completed per quarter

 

60%

1 day

 

Page 114



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report of: Executive Director - Commercialisation (S151)

To: Governance and Audit Thursday, 15 March 2018

(Author: Ellie Stacey – Financial Control Manager - CPBS)

Subject Audit Mandatory Inquiries

Purpose:        To confirm the response to the External Audit Mandatory Inquiries

Recommendation(s): 

1) To approve the response to the External Audit Mandatory Inquiries.

1.0 BACKGROUND

1.1 In order to comply with a number of International Standards of Auditing, external auditors 
are required to obtain an understanding on how those charged with governance exercise 
oversight of management’s processes in relation to fraud, laws and regulations and going 
concern. To assist this work, which forms part of the annual audit, the external auditor 
issues a number of questions to those charged with governance. This year’s focus is on 
fraud, and laws and regulations.

1.2 Appendix A sets out the inquiries to those charged with governance. It has been pre-
populated to a large extent where possible following discussion with the Section 151 Officer 
and Internal Audit. However one question on fraud asks for an opinion, therefore it would 
be inappropriate to pre-empt the Committee’s response.

1.3 Members are asked to consider these responses and to be satisfied that they correspond 
to the committee’s own view of affairs, or whether the responses require modification.

2.0 OPTIONS

2.1 To approve the responses to the mandatory inquiries so that they can be issues to the 
external auditor.

2.2 To make amendments to the responses so that these can be issued to the external auditor.

3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

3.1 It is good practice for a collective view to be formed as this promotes good corporate 
governance arrangements.

Page 115

Agenda Item 10.



4.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS

4.1 This demonstrates the role that the Governance and Audit Committee has at the centre of 
the Council’s governance arrangements. 

5.0 IMPLICATIONS

5.1 Corporate Priorities
5.1.1 The Governance and Audit Committee, through its terms of reference, helps to ensure that 

the service areas and risks reported are working towards the efficient and effective delivery 
of the Council’s corporate priorities.

5.2 Risk Management
5.2.1 The Committee supports the oversight of the Council’s risk management framework, which 

will in turn ensure that the Council’s key risks are reviewed and addressed. This is ensured 
by following best practice and adopting sound terms of reference.

6.0 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED

6.1 All.

7.0 ACRONYMS

7.1 None.

Background papers:- None

Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post: Ellie Stacey – Financial Control Manager - CPBS
Telephone Number 01775 764648
Email: Ellie.stacey@cpbs.com

Key Decision: N 
Exempt Decision: N

This report refers to a Mandatory Service 

Appendices attached to this report: 
Appendix A Inquiries of Those Charged with Governance.

Page 116



Name of Interviewee(s) : Governance and Audit Committee

Name of KPMG Interviewer(s) : Audit Manager

Date(s) of Interview : 15 March 2018

Required Inquiries

Category Short 
Description

Detailed Description Comments 

Fraud REQUIRED 
Programs and 
controls to 
prevent, detect 
and deter fraud 
– oversight by 
those charged 
with 
governance 

How do those charged with governance 
exercise effective oversight of management's 
processes for identifying and responding to the 
risk of fraud in the entity and internal controls 
management has established to mitigate these 
fraud risks?

The Governance and Audit
Committee approves the Internal
Audit programme on an annual 
basis and receives regular reports 
from the Head of Audit and Risk 
Management on progress against 
the plan as well as the outcomes 
from the audit reviews. The 
committee timetable schedules a 
report on fraudulent activity 
detected by the authority during 
the previous year which is 
presented to the committee.

Fraud REQUIRED 
Management's 
assessment of 
fraud risks 
including the 
nature, extent 
and frequency 
of such 
assessment

What are your views about fraud risks at the 
entity?

The Committee agreed that they 
did not have any great concerns, 
based on identified fraud, and that 
no trends had been identified. 
Procedures were felt to be fairly 
robust. No large fraud risks had 
been identified by Internal Audit. 
The Auditors confirmed that 
Lincolnshire Counter Fraud
Partnership is having a positive 
impact. Improvement of processes 
was always being looked at and 
intelligence sharing with peers was 
encouraged. The Chief Executive 
added that a robust 
Whistleblowing Policy was also a 
benefit to the Authority.

Fraud REQUIRED 
Actual, 
suspected or 
alleged 
instances of 
fraud

Are you aware of or have you identified any 
instances of actual, suspected, or alleged fraud, 
including misconduct or unethical behavior 
related to financial reporting or misappropriation 
of assets? If so, have the instances been 
appropriately addressed and how have they 
been addressed?

No instances of actual, suspected, 
or alleged fraud in relation to 
financial reporting and 
misappropriation of assets were 
identified in the last financial year, 
although a fraud report is planned 
to be presented to committee in 
June which will update this 
situation.

Laws and 
regulations

REQUIRED 
Compliance 
with legal and 
regulatory 
framework

How is the entity complying with the legal and 
regulatory framework?

The Council has an effective 
process in place for the 
authorisation of activity as set out 
in the constitution. The monitoring 
officer provides oversight to the 
implementation of the legal and 
regulatory framework. The internal 

Page 117



Category Short 
Description

Detailed Description Comments 

Audit process provides assurance 
on the processes and procedures 
in place to secure compliance.
Legal advice is procured when 
required to support in particular 
new areas of activity. 

Page 118



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report of: Executive Manager - Governance (Deputy Monitoring Officer) – Mark Stinson

To: Governance and Audit Committee - Thursday, 15 March 2018 

(Author: Christine Morgan Democratic Services Officer)

Subject Governance and Audit Committee Work Programme

Purpose: To set out the Work Programme of the Governance and Audit Committee

Recommendation:

That the Committee gives consideration to the content of this report and identifies any issues for 
discussion.

1.0 BACKGROUND

1.1 The Governance and Audit Committee regularly considers a variety of reports from Internal 
Audit, External Audit and the Section 151 Officer.

1.2 Many of these reports are considered at regular intervals, the majority being annually, half-
yearly or quarterly.

1.3 In addition to these reports, the Committee also considers issues on an ad-hoc basis with 
some reports arising from consideration of items at previous meetings.

1.4 Attached at Appendix A to this report is the Work Programme for the Governance and Audit 
Committee.  It lays out all remaining meeting dates for the 2017/18 municipal year, and 
dates for the 2018/19 municipal year have now been added.  Alongside each of these 
meeting dates are issues considered by the Committee on a regular basis together with the 
author of the report, its purpose and whether it is mandatory, and the frequency with which 
it is considered.
 

1.5 Regular items have been transferred from the 2017/18 municipal year to the appropriate 
meeting dates for the new municipal year of 2018/19.  Contributors are requested to 
confirm that the report required, and the meeting dates on which they are to be reported, is 
correct.

1.6 It has been agreed that this Work Programme be a regular item for consideration on the 
Committee’s agenda, thus creating a formal document laying out the work of the 
Committee in a clear, structured and organised way.

1.7 The attached document contains items considered on a regular basis, and also any ad hoc 
issues as and when they arise, for example, issues raised at a meeting to be covered at a 
future meeting, and any one-off issues. 

2.0 OPTIONS

2.1 To note and consider the current status of the Work Programme. 

Page 119

Agenda Item 11.



2.2 To do nothing.

3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION

3.1 To allow Committee members to feed into the Work Programme on a regular basis, to 
ensure that it stays relevant and up to date.

4.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS

4.1 The Work Programme is a formal document laying out the work of the Committee in a 
clear, structured and organised way, thus providing members with up to date and relevant 
information.

5.0 IMPLICATIONS

5.1 Constitution & Legal

5.1.1 Constitutional and Legal implications have been considered and in the opinion of the 
author, there are none arising out of this report.   However, the Work Programme should 
assist in providing a clear programme of work for the Governance and Audit Committee in 
line with the requirements laid out in the Council’s Constitution.

5.2 Risk Management 

5.2.1 Risk Management implications have been considered and in the opinion of the author, 
there are none.  However, one of the roles of the Governance and Audit Committee is to 
monitor the effective development and operation of risk management and corporate 
governance in the Council, and the Work Programme should assist in keeping track of risk 
issues.

6.0 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED

6.1 No wards or communities will be affected by this post.

7.0 ACRONYMS 

7.1 None.

Background papers:- None
Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post: Christine Morgan Democratic Services Officer
Telephone Number 01775 764454
Email: cmorgan@sholland.gov.uk

Key Decision: No
Exempt Decision: No

This report refers to a Mandatory Service
Appendices attached to this report: 
Appendix A Work Programme for the Governance and Audit Committee

Page 120



APPENDIX A

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT – CALENDAR OF WORK PROGRAMME ITEMS 2018/19

Date of Meeting Agenda item Author Purpose and whether mandatory Frequency

24 May 2018 Progress Report and Technical Update External Audit
(KPMG)

To update the Committee on progress 
with the external audit

Twice a year

Internal Audit – Audit Plan Progress 
Report 2017-18

Internal Audit 
(Eastern Internal 
Audit Services)

To update Committee on progress of 
the plan.
Not mandatory, but part of 
Governance role.

Quarterly

Pre-Audit 2017-18 Financial Statements, 
including narrative report

Section 151 Officer To approve financial statements prior 
to release to External Audit
Mandatory

Annual

Draft Annual Governance Statement 
2017-18 (appendix to the Pre-Audit 2017-
18 Financial Statements report)

Section 151 Officer Approval
Mandatory

Annual

Annual Treasury Management Review Section 151 Officer To comply with Treasury 
Management Strategy
Mandatory

Annual

Risk Management Update Report Charlotte Paine Part of Governance role – not 
mandatory

To each 
meeting

26 July 2018 ISA 260 Report 17/18 (previously known 
as Annual Governance report)

External Audit
(KPMG)

Mandatory report to those charged 
with Governance

Annual

P
age 121



Date of Meeting Agenda item Author Purpose and whether mandatory Frequency

Internal Audit – Audit Plan Progress 
Report 2017-18

Internal Audit 
(Eastern Internal 
Audit Services)

To update Committee on progress of 
the plan.
Not mandatory, but part of 
Governance role.

Quarterly

Follow up report on Internal Audit 
recommendations

Internal Audit Twice a year

Annual Report and Opinion (report on the 
past year) 2017-18

Internal Audit Internal Audit opinion to support draft 
Annual Governance Statement
Mandatory

Annual

Risk Management Update Report Charlotte Paine Part of Governance role – not 
mandatory

To each 
meeting

Approval of Annual Governance 
Statement, for inclusion with the 
Council’s published financial statements, 
and approval of the audited 17/18 
financial statements

Section 151 Officer Mandatory – approval required Annual

18 October 2018 SHDC Annual Audit Letter 2017/18 External Audit
(KPMG)

Mandatory/Consultation requirement
To approve audit fees

Annually

Internal Audit – Audit Plan Progress 
Report 2018-19

Internal Audit 
(Eastern Internal 
Audit Services)

To update Committee on progress of 
the plan.
Not mandatory, but part of 
Governance role.

Quarterly

Governance and Audit Committee Self 
Assessment

Internal Audit For confirmation.
Good practice.

Annual

P
age 122



Date of Meeting Agenda item Author Purpose and whether mandatory Frequency

Mid Term Treasury Report 18/19 Section 151 Officer To comply with Treasury 
Management Strategy, reporting 
requirements

Half Yearly

Risk Management Update Report Charlotte Paine Part of Governance role – not 
mandatory

To each 
meeting

17 January 2019 Grant Claims 2017/18 External Audit
(KPMG)

External Audit Certification of Grant 
Claims – Mandatory Approval

Annual

Progress Report and Technical Update External Audit
(Ernst &  Young)

To update the Committee on progress 
with the external audit

Twice a year

Internal Audit – Audit Plan Progress 
Report 2018-19

Internal Audit 
(Eastern Internal 
Audit Services)

To update Committee on progress of 
the plan.
Not mandatory, but part of 
Governance role.

Quarterly

Follow up report on Internal Audit 
recommendations

Internal Audit Twice a year

Treasury Management Strategy 
Statement, Minimum Revenue Provision 
Policy Statement and Annual Investment 
Strategy 19/20

Section 151 Officer Mandatory requirement
To review Treasury Management 
Strategy and approve Prudential 
Indicators

Annual

Risk Management Update Report Charlotte Paine Part of Governance role – not 
mandatory

To each 
meeting

14 March 2019 Audit Plan External Audit
(Ernst & Young)

External Audit Plan – Mandatory 
Approval

Annual

P
age 123



Date of Meeting Agenda item Author Purpose and whether mandatory Frequency

Internal Audit – Audit Plan Progress 
Report 2018-19

Internal Audit 
(Eastern Internal 
Audit Services)

To update Committee on progress of 
the plan.
Not mandatory, but part of 
Governance role.

Quarterly

Strategic and Annual Internal Audit Plan 
2019/20

Internal Audit
(Eastern Internal 
Audit Services)

Annual Internal Audit Workplan -
Mandatory approval

Annual

Audit Mandatory Inquiries Section 151 Officer To confirm the response of the 
external audit mandatory inquiries. 
External auditors are required to 
obtain an understanding on how those 
charged with governance exercise 
oversight of management’s processes 
in relation to fraud, laws and 
regulations and going concerns.
Good Practice

Annual

Item to be added twice yearly to Work Programme in December and June (as part of the year end reporting) – Update on the progress of 
agreed audit recommendations and whether management have implemented these as expected.  Report from Internal Audit. 

The following items to be added to the Committee’s Work Programme on an ad hoc basis, where there is information to report:

 Follow up Report on Internal Audit Recommendations - The Head of Internal Audit to identify internal audit recommendations not yet 
actioned and that where there are concerns, relevant officers to be identified to attend the next meeting of the Governance and Audit 
Committee to explain delay.

 The Head of Internal Audit to present a performance report detailing levels and types of fraud.  

P
age 124


	Agenda
	3.a) Governance and Audit Committee
	3.b) Governance and Audit Committee
	4. Quarterly Risk Report Q3 2017/18
	Appendix A for Strategic Risk Report

	5. Implementation of agreed Internal Audit Recommendations as at 31 October 2017
	Updated App 3

	6. External Audit Plan 2017/18
	7. Certification of grants and returns 2016/17
	Annual Report on grants and returns 2016/17
	Contents
	Headlines
	Summary of reporting outcomes
	Summary of certification work outcomes
	Fees
	Slide Number 7

	8. Progress Report on Internal Audit Activity
	Appendix - Progress report on IA activity

	9. Strategic and Annual Internal Audit Plans 2018/19
	Appendix - South Holland Internal Audit Plans Report 201819

	10. Audit Mandatory Inquiries
	Appendix 1 for Audit Mandatory Inquiries

	11. Governance and Audit Committee Work Programme
	Appendix 1 for Governance and Audit Committee Work Programme


